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DIRECTOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDER'S

Dear Members,

It is our pleasure in presenting the 4t$ Annual Report of the business and operations of your
Company ("the Company" or "Swati') along with the Audited Financial Statements and the
Auditor's Report of the Company for the financial year ending 31s March, 2024. The
consolidated performance of the Company and its subsidimies has been referred to wherever
required.

Financial Results

The summarized financial results for the year ending 3 l't March, 2024 are as under:

Financial l{ighlights (Amount in Rs.)
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Particulars

Employee Benefits
Expenses

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax
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Performance Review

During the fiscal year ending 31$ March,2024, Gross revenue grew by 5.74 o/o and, profit
after tax is Rs. 57.90 Lakhs for the year FY 2023-2024- cnmpared to a profit of Rs. 64.1g
Lakhs for the previous year.

State of Company's Affairs

The Company has been registered with the Reserve Bank of India. in temts of Section 45-IA
of Reserve Bank of India Ac\ 1934 and is carrying on NBFC activity of tle business of
lnvestment in shares & securities and Inter-corporate & personal Loan. The company is
non-Deposit taking NBFC Company.

Change in the nature of business

There are no changes in the nature ofbusiness of the company during the year under review.

Share Capital

The Company's Paid-up Share Capital as on 3 1 
s March, 2024 was Rs. I 0. I 0 Crores.

Transfer to Reserve

-.- During the financial year the company has transferred Rs. 1 I ,57,91 1.00 to staiurory
Reserves in terms of Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Dividend

The company has not made any provision for payment of dividend for the year under
consideration.

Material Changes and Comrnitments; if any, affecting
Company which has occurred between the end of the

the X'inancial Position of the
Iinancial year to which the

financial statenents relrte and the date ofthe report.

There have beea no material changes and commitsrents, which affect the financial position of
the company which have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the
financial statements relate and the date of this Report.

Performarce & financial position of subsidiary company (ies), Associates and Joint
Ventures

The Company have one subsidiary companies - Radhashree Roadsters pw. Ltd.
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F inancial llighlights of Radhashree Roadsters h/t Ltd.

Particulars As at March 3t
2024 n23

Revenue from ooerations u,M,378 41,e2,180

Other Income, net 12,992 7,864

Total Ineome 34;13,37O 42,OO,044

Less: Expenditure

Employee Benefits Experues 15,28,673 5;X,000

Depreciation 8,43,3M 4,87,058

Other Expenses 1.4,06,847 11,54,520

Profit / (Ioss) before Tax (3,65A54j 20,33466

Income Tax 295

Deferred Tax Asseb 87,28L 146,783

Profit / (Loss) after Tax {278,173], 21,79,954

Performance Rbview of Subsidiary Coftpany

During the fiscal year ending 3lst March, 2024, Gross revenue Decrease by 18.75 % and Loss
after tax is Rs. 2.78 Lakhs for the year FY 2023-2024 compaxed to a Profit of Rs. 21.80
Lakhs for the previous year.

Internal F'inancial Controls

Your Company has in place an adequate intemal control system commensuate with the size
of its operations. The intemal control systern comprising of policies and procedwes is
designed to ensure sound management of your Company's opeftltions, safekeeping of its
assets, optimal utilisation of resources, reliability of its financial information and compliance.
Clearly defined roles and responsibilities have been institutionalised. Systems and procedures

are pedodically reviewed to keep pace with the growing size and complexity of your
Company's operations.

During the financial year rmder review, no material or serious observation has been received
from Statutory Auditors and the Intemal Auditors o{$gCompany on such controls.
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Particulars of Ioang guarantee or investments

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the Provisions of Section 186 of
the Companies Act,2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

Particulrrrs of Related Party Transaction as per Sec. 18E(1)

All the related party transactions are-e-ntered on arm's length basis and dre in compliance with
the applicable provisions of the Act. There are no materially significant related party
transactions made by the company with any of its Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or
other designated persons which have potential conflict of interest of the company at large. All
related parly hansactions as required rmder the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 are
provided in FORM - AOC 2 as Annexure II to this report.

Deposits

The Company did not accept any deposits during FY 2023-2024, falling within the purview
of section 73 of the Companies Act, 201 3.

Board Evaluation

The Board of Directors has carried out an armrual evaluation of its own performance, Board,
-.. Committees and Individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors held on 2nd February, 2024 performance of
Non-Independeat Directors, performance of the Board as a whole and performance of the
Chairman was evaluated. considering the views of Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Direetors.

The Board in their meeting held on 2od February, 2024 took note of the Performance
evaluation carried orrt by Independent Directors and also evaluated the performance of
Independent Directors, excluding *re Independent Directors being evaluated.

Bolrd and Committecs

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the Company's performance
and shategies. During the financial year under review, the Board met 6 (Six) times. The dates
on which the meeting of the board was held during the year are as follows:

i+!q;
(r )
=1,rr111'rll'-;)*

Date of Board
Meetine

No. Of
Direclors

10.rt.2023
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The Company does not pay any sitting fees or remuneration to Non-executive Director and
Independent Director during {re FY 2023-2024.

A11 neoessary information which is required to be placed before the board as stipulated in
Companies Act,20l3 & nrles made thereunder has been plaoed before the board for its
review and consideration.

,dudit Committee

During the financial year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed the internal controls
put in place to ensure that the accounts of your Company are properly maintained and that the
accounting transactions are in accordance with prevailing laws and regulations. In conducting
such reviews, the Committee formd no material discrepancy or weakness in the intemal
control system ofyour Company. The Committee has also reviewed the procedures laid down
by your Company for assessing and managing the risks.

During the financial year under review, the Audit Committee met 4 (Four) times to deliberate
on various matters and the gap between any two Meeting was not more than 120 (One
Hrmdred Twenty) days. The required quorum was present in all the Meetingi.

During the financial year under review. Audit Committee Meeting was held on 30s May,
- 2023, 14e Auglrst, 2023, 8e November,Zl23, and 2'd Februaxy, 2024.

The eomposition, attendance and sitting fees paid are as follows;

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Committee comprises of 3 (Three) Members are Independent Directors.

During the financial year under revieq the Committee 4 (Four) times.on 30t'May,2023,
l4e August, 2023, 9th November, 2023 & 2nd February, 2024 utd al1 the members were
present.

Name of
Members

Designation No. of meeting held during the
period

Sitting
Paid

Fees

Held Attended

Sri. Rishi Kapoor Independent Director 4 1

Sri Avinash Jain Independent Director A

Sri Shreegopal

Daga
Managing Director A
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Managenent Discussion and Analysis Report

As required under clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, the
Management Discussion and Analysis Report is enclosed as Annexure III to this report.

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has received nece$sary declaration fiom each Independent Director under
Section 149(7) of tfu Companies Act, 2013, that he/she meets the ciiteria of Indepeiderlce
laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Ac|,2013. The decliration of lndependent
Directors is enclosed with this Report.

Details of Directors/I(MP who have appointed or resigned during the year

During the finaqeial year, none of Directors or Key Managerial Persons (KMP) are retircd
and appointed.

Sri Anurag Daga retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM and, being eligible, seeks
reappointrnent; based on the performance evaluation and recommendation of the nomination
and remuneration comrnittee, the Board recommends his reappointment.

Details of Commission received by MD or WTD of the company during the fmancial year
re7{14).

During the financial year, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Persons (KMP) has
received any cornmission &om the Company.

Key Managerial Personnel

In terms of the provisions of Section 2(51) and 203 of the Act, read with Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Maragerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Sri Shashi Kumar,
Chief Finaneial Officer (CFO) and Sri Ravi Todi, Company Secretary (CS), are the Key
Managerial Persormel of the Company.

Extracts ofAnnual Retum for the financial year as per Section 92(3)" MGT-9

As required pursuurnt to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(l) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an exhact of affrual retum in
MGT 9 as a part of the Annual Report Annexure I.

A copy of the Annual Return will
httos ://www. swatiproj ects,com.

bs hosted on the website of the Company as
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Details regarding conservation of energSr, technologr absorption, foreign exchange
earnings end outgo

Information required under Section 13a(3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8
ofthe Companies (Aceounts) Rules,2014 is not applieable to the Company.

Details of Vigil Mechanism

In compliance with the provisions oi d""tioo 177(9) & (10) of the Act read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, the Company has formulated a vigil
mechanism for Directors and Employees to report genuine concems.

Corporate Governance

Yow Company believes Corporate Govemance is at the core of shareholder satisfaction.
Your Company's govemance practices are described separately in this Annual Report. Your
Company has obtained a certifcation from M Modi & Associates, Chartered Accountants, on
our compliance with Listing Agreement read with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation, 2015 with Indian Stock Exchanges. This certificate is attached to
the Report on Corporate Govemance.

- - Auditors

Statutory Auditors:

Ws. M Modi & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg, No. 319141E & Membetship
No. 054366), Statutory Auditors of the Company, holds office till the conclusion of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and is eligible for re-appoinhnent. They bave confirmed
their eligibility to the effect that their re-appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed
limits under the Act and that they are not disqualified for re-appoinfnent.

Secretarial Auditor:

Pursuant to tbe requirements of Scstion 204(1) of the A.et read with Rrlc 9 of eompanies
(Appoinhrent and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has

appointed P B & Associates, a practicing Company Secretary (C. P. No. 25291, Membership
No. 361 14 & Peer Review Certificate No. 2003/2022\ to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the
fiaancial year under review.

The Sesretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 for the financial year ucder review, as reeeived
from P B & Associates, a practicing Company Secretary, is attached as Annexure IV of the
Board's Report.

' : rr.il-tr.liA-T l!
i;--*A
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lnternal Auditor:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts)
Rule, 2014, the Cornpany has appointed lWs. Ashwani Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 003386N & Membership No.082127), as Internal Auditor of the Company.

Audit 0bservations

Auditors' observations are suitabie explained in notes to the Accounts and are self-
explanatory.

Auditors' Report

The Auditors of the Company has not made any qualification, reservation or adverse remark
or disclaimer in his Audit Report for the relevant financial year.

Reporting ofFrauds by Auditors

During the year under review, neither the Statutory Auditors and Intemal Auditors nor the
Secretarial Auditors has reported to the Audit Committee, under Section 143(12) of the
Companies Act 2013, any instances of fraud committed against the Company by its offcers
or employees, the details of which would need to be mentioned in the Board's Report.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is not
applicable to the Company.

Particular of Employees

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details, as required under Seotion 197(12) of
the Ac! read. with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointnent and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

i. Remuueration paid to Managing Director:

a. Sri Shreegopal Daga - Rs. 2,46,000.00 p.a.

ii. Remrmeration paid to Other Dir€ctors is NIL

iii. Remuneration paid to KMP:

a. Sri Ravi Todi, Company Secretary - Rs. 6,00,000.00 p,a.

b. Sri Shashi Kumar, Chief Financial Officer-.- 3,34,544.00 p.a.

iv. The number of permanent employees on the payroll of the Company is NIL.

v. The average increase ofremuneration bf employees is nonnai.
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vi. The variation in the market capitalizztiort is nil. As there is no change in market
quotation

vii. of shares ofthe company during the year, as no trade in sbares took place.

viii. The remuneration has been paid as per remuneration policy ofthe Company.

ix. No employee of the company employed throughout / part of the financial yeax was
paid monthly salary more than Rs. 5 Lakh per month or Rs. 60 Lakhs in aggregate.

Disclosure about Cost Audit

Cost Audit and maintenance of cost records is not applicable to the Company.

Compliance with Secretarial Standardi

The eo. mpany is in adhcreuce of applieatle Secrctarial Sfa4dards,

Directors Responsibility Statements

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act" 2013 Director of your company hereby
state and confirm that: -

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31't March 2024, +ke
- applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation

relating to material departures;

b. They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of ffnancial year and of the
profit of the Company for the same period;

c. The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregul arities;

d. They have prepaxed the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e. They have laid down intemal financial controls in the company that are adequate are
were operating effectively;

f. They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and these are adequate and axe operating efectively.

t<\-i6
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Statutory Disclosure

None of the Directors of your company are disqualified as per provisions of Section 164(2)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

Disclosures under the sexual Harassment of women at workplace (preventionn
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2O13

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a
.Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace in
line with the provisions of the sexual Harassment of women at workplace (prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. The policy aims to
promote a healthy work environment and to provide protection to employees at the workplace
and redress complaints of sexual harassment and related matters thereto.

Significant & Material Orders Parsed hy the Regulators

During the financial year there were no orders from regulators or courts affecting the going
concem of the company. There were no disputes/appeals with various statutory authorities
impacting the financial position of the company.

... Acknowledgements and Appreciation

Your directors take this opportunity to thank the customers, shareholders, employees, lender
and bankers for their consistent support and encouragement to the company. we are sure you
will join our directors in conveying our sincere appreciation to stakeholder of the Company
and Associates for their hard work and commituent. Their dedication and competence have
ensured that the Company will be a significant player in Business.

Place: Kolkrta

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Swati Proi€cts*I,im ited

For Swati Projects Limited

--?x - ^ | 
0i>1ffi

Managing Director-
Name: Shreegopal Daga
DIN: 00397379

For Swali Proiects Limited
rf)'l-"-t'rz L- .

Directbr
Name: Risbi Kapoor
DIII: 08422654

Name: Avinmh Jain
DIN: 09629214

Anurag Drga
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GENERAL SHAREIIOLDER INFORMATION

Company Registration Details

The Company is registered in the Sfate of
Number (CIN) dlotied to the Company by
L65993W8 I 983PLCA3$32.

West Bengal, India. The Corporate Identity
the Ministy of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is

Maintenance of Shares

The Company's Registrar & Transfer Agent is IWs. Niche Technologies Private Limited

having their r€gistered oftee at 34, A-uckland Place, 7ft Floor, Roorrl No. 7A & 78,
Kolkata - 700 017.

Annual Report

-... The Annual Report containing inter alia, Audited Annual Accounts, Director's Report"

Auditor's Report and other important inforrnation is circulated to members and other entitled
thereto.

Listing on Stock Excbange

The Company;s Shares are listed on Calcutta Stock Exchange of lndia Limited (CSE) and

Metropolitan Stoct Exchange of lndia Limited (MSEI).

Payment of Listing Fees & Depository Fees

Annual Listing Fees for the ye?tr 20232.4 was paid on IOft Apdl, 2023 to the Calcutta Stock

Exchange of India Limited (CSE), I sth Apil, 2023 to the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of
krdia (MSEI) and 2# hne,2023 to the BSE Limited.

Armual Custody/Issuer fee for the yem 2A23-24 was paid on 24h Apdl, 2023 by lhe
Company to National Securities Depositories Limited {NSDL) and 26ft April, 2023 by the

Company to Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

sl
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SEBI Conplaints Redress System (SCORES)

The investor complaints are processed in a centralized web-based complaints redress system
by Securities Exchange Board of India for debt listing. The salient features of this system are
cenlralized database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by
concemed companies and online viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaint and
its curront status. Till the date ofthe-i€port the status of the investor compliance is NIL.

Green Initiative

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had taken the Green lnitiative in Corporate Govemance by
allowing paperless compliances by Companies through ekitronic mode.

Your Company supports the Green lnitiative and has accordingly decided to send all
communications to its shareholders to their respective registered E-mail addresses.

Your Company appeals to yorg its shareholders, who are yet to register your E-mail addresses
that they take necessary steps for registering same so that you can also become a part of the
initiative and contribute towards a qreener environment.

Distrilrution of Equity Shares

Distributiotr of Holdings (No, of Shares)

Sl. No. No of Shares No. of Holders 7o To Total Total Slares 7o of Total

l-500 58s 51.181 l 1,t8,921 r.1774

2. 501 - 1000 s33 46.63r7 3,70,595 3.6693

1001 - 5000 A 0.3499 7,600 0.0752

5001 - 10000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000

5. 10001 - 50000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000

6. 50001 - 100000 J 0.262s 2,20,080 2.1790

7. 100001 - And above l8 1.5748 93,82,844 92.8990

TOTAL 1,143 100.0000 1,01,00,000 100.0000
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Amexure I

Form No.MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE F'INANCIAL YEAR EI\DED ON 3IST MARCH, 2024

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the comp@igs4at-zqt3 and rule 120) of the companies Management and

A4ninistration) Rules. 20 I 4l

I. REGISTRATIONANDOTHERDETAILS:
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II. PR.INCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF'THE COMPANY

Ali the business activities cootribxting 10% or moro of the total tumover of the company
shall be stated: -





Al
.!ii
.!\ l

Total Promoter
Shareholding
(A)=(AXl).+
(AX2)

Subtotal (BX1)

Bodies Corp.

(i) Indian

(ii) Overseas

Individuals

(i) tndividual
shareholders

holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. I lakh

(ii) Individual
shareholders

holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs i lakh

36,00,00

0

3,756

35,97,1

64

4.857

35.64

4,8

9,6

00

4,90,s60

36,00,00
0

4S1 15

6

1{ 07 1

64

4,90

,560

4.855

35.61

5







- Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the

end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) lnterest due but not paid

iii) Inlerest accrued but not
due

Total (i+ii+iit

REIIUNERATION OF DXRtsCTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNAL

Remuneration to l'lanaqinq Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manaoer

Shreegopal Daga (Managing Diredor)

2,46,000.00

Gross salary

(a)Salary as per provisions contained in
sectionlT(l) ofthe Income Tax Act, 1961

(b)Value ofperquisites u/s 17(2) Income Tax
Act, 196I

(c)Profits in lieu of salary under section l7(3)
Income Tax Act, 1961

2,46,000.00

Commissiop

- as 7o ofprofit

- Others, specifi-..

Ceiling as per the Act (5% ofNet Profit) 2,89,478.00

f""tq
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Remuneration to other directors! NIL



iii. Remuneration to Kev Manaserial Personnel Other Than MD/Manacer/WTD

fytQo
+i ..^, :,11h-l li
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SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED
Reg. Address: 168-8 JAMLNALAL BAJAJ STREET, KOLKATA-700007
CIN: L65993 WB 1 983PLC0363 32 E mail: swatioroiectsltd@qmail.com
Phone: +91 9830077000/9988796071., Website: www.swatiprqiects.com

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDINGOFOFFENCESI

Bv Order of the Board of Directors

For S ati Projects Limitetl

'=+*414
Managitrg Director \
Name Shreegopal Daga

DIN: 00397379

For Swati Projects Limited For Swati Projects Limited

Or*"ro"QP Director
Name: Rishi Kapoor
DIN: 08422654

Nane: Avinash Jgin
DIN: 0962914

Place : Kolkata

Date :29th May,7024

Anurag Daga



SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED
Reg. Address: 168-8 JAMLINALAL BAJAJ STREET, KOLKATA-700007
CIN: L65993W8 1 983PLC036332 E mail: swatiproiectsltd@gmgd.cem
Phone: +91 9830077000/998879607 1, Website: www.swatiprojects.com

Annexure - II
FormNo.AOC-2

Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of seotion 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm's lenglh transactions under third proviso thereto:

1.. Details ofcontracts or arrangements or transactions not al arm's length basis:

(a)

o)

(c)

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship - N.A.

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions - N,A.

Duration of the contracts / anansements/hansactions- N.A.

Salient terms of t}le contracts or arrangements or bansactions including the value, if
any - N.A.

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions- N.A.

Date(s) of approval by the Board - N.A.

Amount paid as advances, if any - N.A.

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required rmder
first proviso to section 188- N.A.

(d)

(e)

(0

(e)

(h)

,,.{l'""*qQpl
i:;'i;q,3r1q^.to-t11ti,.i..''.#



SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED
Reg. Address: 168-B JAMTINALAL BAJAJ STREET, KOLKATA-700007
CIN: L65993WB 1983PLC036332 E mail: swatiorojectsltd@ernail.com
Phone: +91 9830077000/998879607 l, Website: www.swatiprojects.com

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Swati Projects Limited

Managing Director

For Swati Projects Limlted

Name: Shreegopal Dagr
DIN: 00397379

For Swati Projects Limited

flL4t:/ J---.-
Dlrector
Name: Rishl Krpoor
DIN: 08422654

On""ro.W
Name: Avinash Jain
DIN: 09629214

Place : Kolkata

I)ate :29thMayr2024

S.N. Particulars Details

(a) Name(s) of the related party and

nature of relationship

(b) Nature of
contracts/arangements/transactions

(c) Duration of the contr'acts I
aff angements/transactions

N.A.

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transaction including
the value. ifanv.

(e) Date(s) ofApproval by the Board N.A.

(0 Amount paid as advance, if any N.A.



SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED
Reg. Address: 168-8 JAMUNALAL BAJAJ STREET, KOLKATA-700007
CIN: L65993W81983PLC036332 E mail: swatiprqiectsltd@email.com
Phone: +9 1 9830077000/998 879607 I, Website: www.swatiprojects.com

Annexure - III

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION A}[D ANALYSIS REPORT

Pursuant to clause 49 of Listing Agreement, a Management Discussion & Analysis report is
given below: -

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AI\D DEVELOPMENTS

The performance of the company was satisfactory during the year rmder review your
company incuned profit Rs.57,89,556/- during rhe financial yeal^ 2023-2024. your directors
are hopefirl to achieve better results in future.

OUTLOOK ON OPPORTUNITIES, TEREATS, RISKAND CONCERNS

As far as the future outlook is concerned, the company is expected to increase the scope of
the NBFC Business in the future, considering the fact that industrial growth picks up.

-.. The company is in position to compete with its competitors by better customer services.

TNTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND TrIErR{)EQUACY
Your Company is committed to maintaining high standards of intemal controls designed to
provide accuracy of information, effrciency of opemtions, and security of assets. The
company has adequate intemal controls commensurate with the size and nature of its
operations to elsure orderly and efficient conduct of business. These controls ensure the
safeguarding of assets, prevention and detection of fraud and error, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, timely preparation of reliable financial information
and adherence to companies' policies, procedures and legal obligations. The audit committee
of the Board of Directors meets periodically to review the performance as reported by the
auditors.

FINANCIAL PDRT'ORMANCE

The company's revenue from operations for the financial year 2023-2024 is Rs. l,12,g6,794/-
as compared to the previous year of Rs. 1,06,73,697l-. The profrt made for tle curent
Financial Year is Rs. 57,89,556/- The margin earned during the year is thin as compared to
tle previous year due to the reason of stiff competition & Global recessionary trend. The
Directors expect better results in the next coming yem. "{dtrDx;'.\l-!, | .1 /\l---\E



SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED
Reg. Address: 168-8 JAMUNALAL BAJAJ STREET, KOLKATA-700007
CIN: L65993W81983PLC036332 E mail: swatiorojectsltd@gmail.com
Phone: +91 983007700019988796071, Website: www.swatiproiects.com

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN IITJMAN RASOURCES/ INDUSTRIAL
RELATIONST'RONT

There has been no development on tle Human Resource/ Industrial Relations Front during
the year.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Management Discussion and Analysis report are based on certain assumptions and

expectatigns of future events. The Company cannot guarantee that these assumptions and

expeotations are accurate or will be realized by the Company. Actual results could differ
materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make deferelce to
the Company's operation include global and Indian market conditions, changes in the

Government Regulations, Tax regimes, WTO Regulations and such other factor. The
Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modifu or revise any of these

statements on the basis, of any subsequent developments, information or events.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

}d For Swatl Projects Llmited

For Swati Projects Limited

o"u"ro" 0P
Name: Avinash Jain
DIN: 0962914

Place : Kou€ta

Date

-=)^-€-*-)(
Managing Director u I \
Name: ShreegopatDaga \

DIN:00397379

For Swati Projects Limited

rnh ,
v/12''

Director
Name: Rishi Kapoor
DIN: 08422654

:29ih Nlayr2024



Manapinq Director and CFO Certification

To Whom It Mav Concern

We, Shreegopal Daga, Chairman & Managing Director and Shashi Kumar, Chief Financial Offrcer
ce{iS that:

1. We have reviewed the fmancial statements and cash flow statement for the vear ended 31"t
Marctt"2024 andto the best of our knowledge and belief

a. These statements do not confain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
cottain statements that might ba misleading;

b, These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in
compliance with existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations,

2, To tha best af o ur k-nowledgc and belicf, no tlansaotions ente_ red into by the eompany dunng
the year ended 31"'March, 202.4 xe fraudulent, illegal or violative ofthe Company's code of
conduct.

3. Wo accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining intemal controls for financial
reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of intemal control systerns of the CompanX
pertaining to financial reporting. Deficienoies in the design or operation of such intomal
controls, if any, of which we are aware, have been disclosed to the auditors and the Audit
Committee and steps have been taken to rectify these deficiencies.

4. i) There has not been any significant change in intemal control over fnancial reporting during
the year under reference;

ii) There has not been any significant change in accounting policies during the year tequiring
disolosure in the notes to the fmaocial statements; and

iii) We are not aware of any instance during the year of significant fi-aud with involvement
therein of the management or any employee having a significant role in the Company's
intemal control system over financial reporting.

Place: Kolkata

Date: 29bMay,2A24

Chairman & Managing Director

9l-u'h-''
(Shashi Kunar)

'Chief Financial Officer



RISHI KAPOOR' Independent Director. IO13X-5, GALI KHATIKAN, BAZAR DHAB KHATIKAN,
AMRITSAR.143OO1, PIINJAB, INDIA

Email: rishibrgnbrc@gmail.com

D€claratlon ftom Independent Dlrector puauant to Sectlon 149(7) of the. Companies Act. 2013

I, Rishi Kapoor, Son of Late Shd Brij Lal Kapoor bom on 27s August, 1974, resident of S/o.
Late Brij Lal Kapoor, 1013X-5, Gali Khatikan" Bazar Dhab Khatikan, Amritsar - 143001,
Punjab, India, do hereby declare that I am not disqualified to act as an Independent Director
of Mls. Swati Projects Limited and furtJrer declare that:

A. I arn a person of integrity and possess relevant expertise and experience.

B. 1) I am not a Promoter of the Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate
Company.

ii) I am not related to Promoters or Directors in the Company, its holding, subsidiary,
or associate Company.

C. I have no peeuniary relationship with the company, its holding, subsidiary, or
associate company, or their promoters, or directors, during the two immediately
precedrng financial years or during the current financial year;

D. None of my relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with the
company, its holding, subsidiary or associale company, or their promoters, or
directors to two percent or more of its gross tumover or total income or
fift}' lakh rupees or such higher amount as may be prescribed, whichever is lower
during the two immediately preceding financial ye.rs or during the cunent financial
year;

E. I neither myself nor any of my relatives:

a. Holds or held the position of a key managerial personal or is or has been employee of
the corirpany or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any of the three
financial years immediately preceding the financial year in which I am proposed to be
appointed;

b. Is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the tlree financial
years immediately preceding the financial year in which I am proposed to be
appointed, of-

1. Firm of auditors or company seciretaries in practice or cost auditor of the
company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company; or



RISHI KAPOOR
Independent Director

IOI3X.5, GALI KHATIKAN, BAZAR DHAB KHATIKAN,
AMRITSAR.l43OO 1. PI'NJAB. INDIA

Email rishibrgnbc@gmail.com
Phone: 8725056320

2. Any legal or a consulting fiffr thal has or had any transaction with the
company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company amolmting to ten
percent or more of the gross tumover of such firm;

3. I do not hold together with my relative's two percent or more of the total
voting power of the company; or

4, I am not a Chief Executive or Director, by whatever name called of any non-
preorganization that receives twenty five percent or morc of its receipts ftom
the company, any of its pmmoters, directors or its holding, subsidiary or
associate company or that holds two percent or more of the total voting power
ofthe company; and

F. I possess such other qualifications as may be prescribed.

@,P
Signahre

Date:29eMay,2024 Name: Rishi Kapoor

Place: Kolkata Designation: Independent Director

DIN:08422654



Avinash Jain
Independent Director

S/o: Pawan Kunar, H No409/7, Jain Gali, Bikanerian Bazzar, Anuitsar-Il, Amribar G. P, O,
Amritsar-143001, Punjab India
Emaih ayinashia$53o@enaiksm

Declaration from Independent Director pursuant to Section 149(7) ofthe Companies AcL 2013

I, Avinash Jain @IN: 09629214) residing at S/o. Pawan Kumar, H No409/7, Jain
Gali, Bikanerian Bazzar, 4syl1rar-143001, do hereby declare that I am not
disqualified to act as an lndependent Director of lWs. Swati Projects Limited aad
f,rther declare that:

A. I am a person ofintegrity and possess relevant expertise and experience.

B. i) I am not a Promoter of the Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate

Company.

ii) I am not related to Promoters or Directors in the Company, its holding, subsidiary,
or associate Company.

C. I have no pecuniary relationship with the company, its holding, subsidiary, or
associate aompany, or their promoters, or directors, during the two immediately
preceding financial years or during the current financial year;

D. None of my relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with the
company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or- 
directors amounting to two percent or more of its $oss furnover or total income or
fifty lakh rupees or such higher amount as may be prescribed, whichever is lower
during the two immediately preceding financial years ol during the current financial
yea.r;

E. I neithet myself nor any of my relatives:

a. Holds or held the position of a key managerial personal or is or has been
ernployee of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any
of the tfuee financial years immediately preceding the financial year in which I am
proposed to be appointed;

b. Is or has been an employee or propdetor or a paf,brer, in any of the three financial
years immediately preceding the financial year in which I am proposed to be
appointed, of-

1. Firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditor of the company
or its holding, subsidiary or associare company; or



Avinash Jain
Independent Direetor

S/o: Pawan Kum a9 HNo4$9 /7,lain Gali, Bikanerian B azza\ AmiEar-II, Amritsar G. P. O,
Amribar-1<13001, Punjab, India
Emaih avinashiain520@etnail,com

Phone: 8725056319

2. Arty legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the company,

its holding, subsidiary or associate company amounting to ten percent ot more of
the gross fumover of such firm;

3. I do not hold together with my relative's two percent or more of the total voting
power of the company; or

4. 1 an not a Chief Executive or Director, by whatever name called of any non-
preorganization that receives twenty fiye percent or more of its receipts from the

company, any of its promoterc, directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate

company or that holds two percent ot more of the total voting power of the

company: and

F. I possess such other qualifications as may be prescribed.

signature SP
Date:Z9h May,2024 Name: Avinash Jain

Place: Kolkata Designation: Independent Director

DII{:09629214



AMIT LAL
. Hou,""". rt".3"',Tillirl.R:T$$","""**

Jaum Phatalq Amritsar - 143001
Email: amitJal4u@yahoo.co,in

Declaration from Independent Direetor pursuant to Sectiotr 149(7) of the Compani€q Act" 2013

I, Amit Lal @IN: 09469579) residing at House No- 57, Gali No. 18/3, New
Dashmesh Nagar, Jaura Phatak, Amritsar-143001 do hereby declare that I am not
disqualified to act as an Independent Director of IWs. Swati Projects Limited and

further declare that:

A, I am a penon of integrity and possess relevant expertise and experience,

B. i) I am not a Promoter of the Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate

Company.

ii) I am not related to Promoters or Directors in the Company, its holding, subsidiary,
or associate Company.

C. I have no pecuniary relationship with the company, its holding, subsidiary, or
associate company! or their promoters, or directors, during the two immediately
preceding financial years or during the current financial year;

D. None of my relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or tmnsaction with the

company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or
directors amounting to two percent or more of its gross tunover or total income or
fifty lakh {upees or such higher arnount as may be prescribed, whichever is lower
dw-ine the two iuunediately preaedi-lr€ fiuancial yeaxs or during the current filranaral
yeal;

E. I neither myself nor any of my relatives:

c. Holds or held the position of a key managerial personal or is or has been

employee of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any

of the three financial years immediately preceding the financial year in which I am
ploposcd to be appoiqted;

d. Is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partoer, in any of the three financial
years immediately preceding the financial year in which I am proposed to be

appointed, of-

l. Firm of auditors or company secretari6s in practice or cost auditor of the company

or its holding, subsidiary or associate company; or



AMIT LAL
Independent Director

House No. 57, Gali No. 18/3, New Dashmesh Nagar
Jaura Phatak, Amrinar - 14300 L

Email:3!!illsUulP]d@g&

2. A-rry legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the company,
its holding, subsidiary or associate company amounting to ten percent or more of

. the gross tumover of such firm;

3. I do not hold together with my relative's two percent or more of the total voting
power of the company; 01

4. I am not a Chief Executive or Director, by whatever name called of any non-
preorganization that receives twe$y fNe percent or more of its rcce'rpts from the
company, any of its promoters, directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate
company or that holds two percent or more of the total voting power of the
company; and

F. I possess such other qualifications as may be prescribed.

/\*;/ L/
Signature

Dxe29eMay,2024 Name: Amitlal
Place: Kolkata Designation: Independent Director

DIN:09469579
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FORMNO.MR.3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FORMAT

FOR TIIE FINANCIAL YEAR NNDED 31ST MARCII,2024
lPursuant to S€ction 204(1) ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 ofthe Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 20141

To"

The Members,

Swati Projects Ltd
168 B Jamunalal Bajaj Street

Kolkata:700007
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit ofthe compliance of applicabl€ statutory provisions

and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Swati Projects Ltd (CIN NO:
L65993WB 1983PLC036332) ('hereinafter called the Company') having Registered Office at

168 B Jamunalal Bajaj Street, Kolkata :700007. The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporale conducts/ statutory
compliances and expressing our opirion thereon.

Based on our veriflcation of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and retums
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives whether electronically or
otherwise during the conduct of secrctarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March,2024
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper

Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject
to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and retums filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024

according to the provisions ot
a) The Companies Act,20l3 (the Act) and the rutes made thereunder;

b) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA) and the rules made

thereunder;

c) The Depositories Ac! 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thefeunder;

d) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules ard regulaiions made

. thereunder to lhe extent of Foreign Direct Investmenl Overseas Direct Investment

and Extemal Commercial Borrowings; (Not Applicable during the audit period)

e) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and

Exchange Board oflndia Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and

Takeovers) Regulations, 201 i
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g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

'Regulations, 2015. The listed entity is in compliance with Regulation 3(5) & 3(6)

SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 relating to Structural Digital

Database.

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not Applicable during the audit period)

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines,l999 and The Securities and Exchange

Board oflndia (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021

(Not Applicable during the audit period)

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India ({ssue and Listing of Non-Convertible

Securities) Regulations,2021- (Not Applicable during the audit period)

k) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with

client - (Not Applicable during the audit period)

l) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,

2021 (Not Applicable during the audit period)

m) The Securilies and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,

2018 - (Not Applicable during the audit period)

The Management has identified and confirmed the following Laws as being specifically
applicable to the Company:

i- Rules, Regulations and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of lndia as per Reserve

Bank of India Act 1934 and circular, Master circular, directions and notifications, to

the exent as applicable to Non- Deposit Taking Non-Banking Financial Companies

ii. Non-Banking Financial Company-Syst€matically important Non-Deposit Taking

Company (Reserve Bank) Direcfions 2016

iii. Prevention ofMoney Laundering Act 2002 and its circulars, notifications.

iv. Anti -Money Laundering Regulation issued by RBI and various circulars and

Guidelines thereunder

v. The Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881

vi. The Indian Stamp Act 1899 and the State Stamp Acts

vii. The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prev€ntion,

' Redressal) Act 2013

.Prohibition and
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viii. Income Tax Act, 1961

ix, Goods & Services Act 2017

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
. Secretarial Standards SS - 1 & SS - 2 issubd by The Institute of Company Secretaries

of India.
. Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Listing Agreement entered into by the
Company with BSE Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Stindards, etc. mentioned above except as herein below:

Due to clerical error the report for Reg 74(5) has been uploaded for First Quarter and

Second Quarter in the wrong quartef, i.e the Report for QE June 30th 2023 uploaded

in Second Quarter on 1910712023; in Second Quarter ended 30th September 2023 got

uploaded on 20th October 2023. Although both the certificates are ready with

company as shown by them during the audit period on CSE Listing Portal.

Company has submitted the Statement of Grievance Redressal Mechanism report

under Reg l3(1) for quarter ended June 30,2023 on 15th January 2024 instead of2lst
July 2023 on CSE Listing Portal

The Company has registered with CIBIL and yet to register itself with other 3 CIC

/the company has not filled any retum with CIC registered

The Company being the NBFC Company has not registered itself with National E-

govemance Services Limited OESL).

The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax
laws, has not treen reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject to revierv by the
statutory financial auditor and other designated professionals.

We further report that:

ll.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non- Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The
changes being carried out in the composition of ihe Board of Directors during the
period under review were made in compliance with the provisions of the Act and
Rules made thereunder and SEBI LODR.
Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists
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for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items

before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

iii. Majority decision is carried tlrough while the dissenting members' views are

captured and recorded as part ofthe minutes.

iv. Decisions at the Boatd Meeting, as fepresented by the management and recorded in
minutes, were taken unanimously

v. There are adequate systems and processes in the Company, commensurate with the

size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws. rules. regulations and guidelines

We have relied on. repr€sentation m;;e bythe Company, its Officers and on the reports given

by designated professionals for systems and processes formed by the Company to monitof
and ensure compliances under other applicable Act, Laws and Regulations to the Company.

We fuilhef report that as per the records, the Company generally filed all the forms, retums,

documents and resolutions as were required to be filed with the Regishar of Companies

('ROC') within the stipulated time- Further, the company is recommended to take utmost care

while fillilg the forms with MCA.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further repod that during the audit period under review, there were no major specific
events/actions having a major be any's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. refened to above.

We further report that dwing the audit period. there were no instances of
r Public/Rights/Preferential issue of Shares/debentures/ sweat equity
r Redemption /buy-back of securities.
. Merger/amalgamation/reconstruction €tc.

' Mer Foreisn technical collaborations.

Disclaimer:
We have conducted the assignment by examining the Secretarial Records including Minutes,
Documents, Registers and other records etc., received by way of electronic mode from the

Company and could not be verified from the original records. The management has

confirmed that the records submitted to us are true and corect. This Report is limited to the
Statutory Compliances on laws / regulations /guidelines listed in our report which have been

conplied by the Company pertaining to Financial Year 2023-24.
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We are not commenting on the Statutory Compliances whose due dates are extended by
RegulaJors from time to time or still there is time line to comply with such compliances.

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as "Annerure 1"
and forms an integral part ofthis repo$.

ForPB&Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries
UDIN: A{136114F0004908I0

PAYAL BAFNA ffi!.XlH,YMffi
CS Payal Bafna
Proprietor
Mem No: 36114 | COP: 25291

Date:29.05.2024
Place: Kolkata
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Annexure - I

lo.
The Members,

Swati Projects Ltd

Our report of even date is to be read along vvith this letter.

l Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records

based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the conectness of the contents of the Secretarial records.

The verification was done on test basis to ensure that con€ct facts are reflected in
s€cretatial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a

reasonable basis for our opinion.
3. We have not verified the corectness and appropfiateness of financial records and

Books ofAccounts ofthe company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management reprcsentation about the

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,

fegulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our exarnination was

limiied to the verification ofprocedures on lest basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the managem€nt has

conducted the affairs ofthe cornoanv.

ForPB&Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries
UDIN: ,4.0361 14F000490810

PAYAL BAFNA ##]T,fA1'iJ#}ff,S
CS Payal Bafna
Proprietor
Mem No: 36114 | COP: 25291

Datet 29,05.2024
Place: Kolkata
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Independent Auditors' Certificate on Compliance with the Conditions of Corporate Governance asper I'rovisions of Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Lisdn; obfigations and
Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015, (as amended)

To
The Members
Swati Plojects Limited
I 68R. Jarntrnalal Bajaj Str.eer,
Kolkata , 700007, India

1. The Corporate Governance_Repo,t prepa."d by Swati projects Limited (,.the Company,,), contains
details as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 , clauses (b) to (i) of regulati in a6e) and para-C and D
of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Lisiing Obligaiions and Disclosure
Requilements) Regulations, 20i5, as amendecl ('1he Listing Regulitions',f (.applicable criteria')
with respect to Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31,2024.

l\4anagements' Responsibility

2 The pfeparation of the Corporate Govemance Report is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting recolds and
documents. This responsibility also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
iutertlal confiol relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe Corporate Governance Report.

3. The Management along with the Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the
Company complies with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing
liegulations, issued by the Securities and Exchange Boar.d of India.

Auditors' Responsibility

4. Our lesponsibility, is to provide a reasonable assurance in the form of an opinion with the
conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipnlated in the Listing Regulations.

5. We conducted our examination of the Corporate Governance Reporl in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) and the Guidance
Note on Cerlification of Corporate Governance, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('lCAf). The Guidance Note on Reports or Ceftificates for Special purposes
(Revised 2016) reouires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics iisued
by the ICAI.

6. We I'rave complied with the relevant applicable requirenents of the Standard on Qlality C6ntrol
(SQq 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Review of Histor.ical Financial
Infolnation, and Other Assuralce and Related Service Engagements.
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7. The procedures selected depend on the auditor''s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
associated in compliance of the Corporate Governance Report with the applicable criteria. The
procedures include but not limited to verification of secretarial records and frnancial information of
the Company and obtajned necessary representations and declarations from directors including
independent directors of the Company.

8. The plocedures also include examining eviclence supporting the parliculars in the Corporate
GoveLnance Repofi on test basis. Further, our scope of work under ihis reporl did not involve us
perfomring andit tests for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the faimess or accuracy of any
ofthe financial information or the financial statements ofthe Company taken as a whole.

Opinion

9. Based on the procedures performed by us as refened in paragraph 7 and 8 above and according to
the ir.rformation and explanations given to us, we a1'e of the opinion that the Company has compiied
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, as applicable
for the yeal ended March 31,2024, refened to in paragraph 1 above.

Other Matters and Restriction on use

10.This report neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs ofthe company.

1 1. This reporl is addressed to and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose of
enabling it to comply with its obligations urder the Listing Regulations and should not be lsed by
auy other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care ol for
any other pulpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or into whose hands it may come
withor"lt orlr pdor consent in writing. We have no responsibility to update this reporl for events and
crrcunstances occurring after the date of this reporl.
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Place: Kolliata

Date: 29'r' May,2024

(MembershiD No. 054366)
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AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
The Board ofDirectors,
Swati Projects Limited
1688. Jamunalal Bajaj Streer,
Kolkata-700007

As required under Non-Banking Financial ccompanies-Auditors' Report (Reserve bank) Direction and on the basis ofirrformation and explanation giien to us, we repoft that: 
L \rNovr ve u",r*'/ ,-l'Eu'on ano on t

iA)

l) The company is engaged in the business ofNon-Banking Financial Institution ard it has obtained a certificate ofr'egistration fiom Reserve Bank oflndia.

on basis ofour examination ofcurent year ended Balance sheet and profit and Loss Account we hereby repoft thatcompany is entitled to continue to hold such certificate ofregistration in terms of it, u.srtr/in"o,11" putt"ir.u, on3l'r March, 2024.

on the basis ofour examination ofcunent year ended Balance sheet we r.epoft that the company be classified basedon its assets as INVESTMENT & LOAN coMpANy. vv.rvq'rr vw vr.'J'

Not Applicable;

1) The Board ofDirectors has passed a resolution for Non-Acceptance of any public Deposit.

2) The Company has not accepted any public Deposit dudng the year ended 3 l"t March.2024.

3) The C,ompany has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition, accounting standard,s assetsclassification and provibioning for bad and ,loubttul debts as alplicable to it in til ;aN;;-B;;?G iinanciat (NonDeposits Accepting or Holding) companies prudential Norm, 1i"."ru. Bank) Directions, 2007.

4) The company is not a systematically 
lmportant company as defined i[ paragraph 2(l ) (xix) of the Non-BankingFinancial (Non Deposit Accepting or Hotoing; companres rrudential Norms-(Res"-" n""i; oir*ronr, zooz.

3D) Nor Applicable;

Place: Kolkata

Date: 29th May,2024

\
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Independent Auditors' Report

'Io

I hc Me nrbei s of M/s. Srvati l)ro jects Limited

l{clrort on the Audit of the Stnndalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have auclited the accomp:rnying slandalole fina:rcial statements of M/s. Swati plojects Limiteci (.the('onrpany')' which con.rpt'ise thc Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 3I,2024, the Stanclalor-re Statement
of Ploilt arld l,oss (rncluding Otlier ConrPlchensive Income), Standalone Statement of Chalges in Eqr-rity
illlcl Statrclalotlc Staleurcnl ol (lash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the slandalole finar.icial
sliltclllellts. including a sumtr.r.ily of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory informatio'
(hcreinafie| r'c1c|r'ed to as "thc standalone.hnancial statements',).

ln oLt| opilliotl arlci 1o thc besl of oul infolmation and accorcling to the explanations given to us, the
rlbresaid slandaloue fir.rancial statetnents give the infolmation required by the Companies Act, 20i3 (,,the
Act'') irt tlle rlallller so leqttiled ar.rd give a tiue and fair view in conformity with ihe Indial Accorintilg
Starrclatds plcsclibed ut]tlcr seclior-r 133 of the Act read with the Conpanies (indian Accor,rnting Standar.dsj
IiLrlcs. 2015, as amended, ("lnd AS") and othel accounting principlis geneially accepted in inclia, o1. the
state o1'al'l'airs of tl.re Con.rpany as at Mat'ch 31,2024, the profit and othJr compiehensive incone, changes
irr cqr,rity and its cash flows fbr the year ended on that date.

l];tsis lbr Opinion

\\'c cotrdtrclccl oltt arttlil ol tltc stanclalone financial statemelrts in accordance with tlre Standar.cls oLr
.\Lrtlitirts spcciliecl ttttdel scctiou l4i(l0) of the Act. Our lesponsibilities uncler those SAs ale jr-rr.ther
rlcscribccl ir, thc ;lt.rtlitot. .s lla.slnn.sibilttie,s.[or: the Audit of the Stcrndul,tne !-inanciul St({tenxents sectrotr oJ.
o(rr rclloft We ale irldelcn.lclll of the Clompany in accordalce with the Code of Ethrcs issr.recl by the
lrrstitLrle of'Chalteted Accottntants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical reqr-riremenrs that ar.e r.elcvalt
1o oLlt ztttclit of the standalor.re financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the liules
lltcreundei'. and we have firliilled oul otl-rer ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reqlrirenrents
ancl thc ICAI's Cocle ol'Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is stifficient a1cl
approp|iate to provide a basis 1br our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

l(cv r\udi1 Matter-s

l(e1' aLrclit lratlers are tl'rose n)attels that, ir.r oul professior.ral juclgement, wer.e of most significalce irr uLrr.
lLrciil ol'the starrclalol'Ie financial statements of the current periocl. These matters were addresse(l in lhe
colllcxi ol otrf aLrdit o1'lhe slanrlalone fiuancial statenlents as a whole, and in forming onr. opinion thefeon.
ancl we clo nol provrde a sepitrale opinion on these matters.
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Descriplion of l(ey Audit Matter

llvaluntion of tax positions

audit matter
l-lrc Corrrpaly's operarions ill
periodic challer-rges by local
f:Ir!c of lex D1 {eIS ar.isirrg irr
br,>irress irrclLrdirrg dir.ect tnx
rratters.

India are subject to
tax authorities on a
Lhe normal course of
ar.rd transfer pricing

Estimating tlie ir.rcome tax expenses also requires
tire Company to detennine tlre probabil.ity of tax
authorities accepting a particrrlar tax lreatment for
pote1.)t1al tax cxposures. Thcsc involi,c significant
.jLrdgentent lry the Con-rpany to detel.nine the
lrossible outcome ofthe tax litigations and potential
tax exirosures, consequently having an impact on
felated acconnting and disclosur.es in the staudalone
f-inancial statetrents.

Our audit procedures on taxation inclira" tt 
"following:

o Obtained, an understanding of key tax
litigations and potential tax exposures.

. Evaluated the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the interr.ral
controls relating to the Company,s
assessment of the possible outcorne of tax
litigations, potential. tax exposures and
related clisclclsures ir.r tl-re stancialone
financial statements.

. ' The audit team, along witir our internal tax
expefis:

* Read and analyzed select key
correspondences a:rd consultations carr.ied
out by the Courpany including with exter.nal
tax experts for key tax litigatiotrs and
potential tax exposures.

4 Inquired wirh rhe Company and exrer.nal rrx
experts to evaluate key assumptions and
grounds of appeal consider.ed by the
Company in estimating tilc cutrent tax
balances.

+ Evaluated the status of the recent tax
assessments/inquiries, results of previor-rs tax
assessme Ls! legal precedence/j udicial
rulings ald changes in tax environment. Tl.ris
is pelformed to assess and challenge the
Company's estimate of the possible outcome
of key tax litigations and potential tax
exposures.

4 Assessed and tested the adequacy and
accuracy of the presentation and disclosr-u:es
in the standalone financial statements.

Ne\\ Dolhi , it )r,5. N1: 9t25sll.24l

How the matter was addressed in our auclit
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0tlrcr Inlbrrnation

'Ihe Cor.r.rpany's Management anci Board of Directors are responsible fol the other. inforrnation. Tire other.
inibnnation comprises the information included in the Company's annual repofi, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our ar.Lditor,s report thereon. The annual ieport is expected to be macle
available to us after the date of this auditors' report.

Our opiuiou oir the standalone fir'rancial state'ments does not cover the other inforn-Lation and we clo not
c\paess at)) folrrr ofassrrlarrcc coltclusiol) thereon.

Iu contlectiot] with oul ar"rdit of the standalone financial statements, oul responsibility is to tead tlte other
irlformation identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether tl.ie other
iufolmation is materially incorlsistent lvith the standalone financia.l statements or our knowledse obtained
in the audit ol otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

wher we reacl the a'.rual repo'l, il rr,c conclude that there is a matcr.ial misstatement therein, we ar.e
leqltiled to commLtnicate the n'Iatter to lhose charged with governanoe and take necessaD actions, as
applicable lutdel tl.ie relevant laws and resulations.

Managctnents and Board ol Directors' I{esponsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's lnanagement and Board of Directors are responsible for tire matters stateci ir.r Section
134(5) of the Companies Act. 2013 ('the Act') with respect to the pleparation ofthese standalone finalcial
slalcrllerlts thal give a lt'ne ancl fail view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other complehensive ir.rcop.ie,
cltauges irl equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles gener.ally
accepted in lndia, ir.rcludir.rg the lndian Accounting Standards (ind AS) specified under section 133 of the
Act This r-esponsibility also ir.rcludes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
pt'ovisiotls of the Act fol saf-egualding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and cletectipg
fi'ar'rds ar.rd othel' irlegularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; makin!
.jLldgn'Ients and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation ancl maintelance of
aclequate internal fiuancial contlols, that were-operating effectively for ensur.ing the acclyacy ar.rd
colllilletelless ol' the accouutir.rg recolds, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
flnancial statenlents that give a tt'ue and fair view and are free from mirterial misstatement, whether cir-re to
Ilaud or erlor'.

In prepalillg the startdalone linar.rcial statu-nents, management and Board of Directors ar.e responsibie 1br
asscssing the Compatty's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
goit.ig cotlcettr and ttsing tlre goiILg coircern basis of accounting r-rnless the Bbar.d of Director.s eithet.intends
to liqLriclate the Contpany or lo cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

'Ihe Board of Directols is responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporling process.
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Auilitors' Ilesponsibilities for the Audit of the.Standalone Financial Statements

Oin' objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone fir-rancial statements as a
rvltole ate ll'ee fron-r material n'risstatement, wirether due to fraud or error, and to issr.re an auditor.'s report
tl.rat includes out' opit-tior-r. lleasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
alldit conducted in accot'dance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatentellts cau alise ftonr fiaud ol error and are considered material il individually or in the aggregate,
thc)' cotlld reasouably be expecLed to influence the economic decision of users taken on the basis of these
stanclalone ll nanc ial statelleuts.

As palt of an audit in accordance with SAs,
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

Identily and assess the lisks of material misstatement of the standalone financial slalerrenrs!
whether due to fi'aud or er'lor, design and perfonri ai.rdit procedules responsive to those lisks, ald
obtain attdit evidence that is srrfficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of'nol detectir.rg a natet'ial niss;lalcment resulting ftom fraud is higher thar.r for one resr-rlting liom
elrol! as flaud tlay involve collusion, forgery, intentional onrissions, misrepresentations. or [he
ovellide of inteli.ral contlol.

Obtain an ttnderstandit.tg of internzLl financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design ar-rdit
ptocedr:res that are appl'opriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, rve ate
:1lso respotisible fol expt'essing or"tr opinion on whether the Company has adeqr-rate inter-r.ral
flnancial controls systent irT place and the operating effectiveness ofsuch controls.

r) llvaluate the appropliateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of accouuting
estirrates and related disclosures made by managefirent.

Conciude or.r tl,e applopliateness of management's mee of the going concern basis of accor-urling
arld, based on the a,t-ldit evidencc obtained, whether a material unceflainty exist related to events ol
conditions that may cast signi{icant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going cc}ncern.
I I we conclltcle that a matorial r"tncertainty exists, we have reqr,rired to draw attention u.t our
altditor''s l'epon to thc related clisclosures in the standalone finaucial statements or'. i1' sgc|r
disclostttes ale inadequate, to modify or"u'opinion. Our conclusiru'rs are based on the audit evidence
obtairted up to the clate o1'our auditor's repofi. However, future events or conditions nlay cause the
Conrplrr; lo cctse to colllinile a> a going concem.

Evaluate the ovelall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial srarerrenls,
including the disclosr:res, zind whether the standalone financial statentents represent llte undei.lying
transactions and events in a mannel that achieves fair presentation.
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Materiality is the n]agttitude of misstaternents in the standalone financial statements that, individuallv or. in
itqir.fegate. nraltes it probatrle that the economic decisions of a reasorrably knowledgeable us.r. ,f Ll,"
starlclalone lirlancial staten.lents rnay be iLrfluenced. We consider quartitati;e materia;ty and qnalitative
lactors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our worlc; an6 (ii) to
evaluate tlie c1'fect o1'any identified misstatements in the staadalone financial statements.

we collllrtnlicate with tl.rose charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the pianned scope
arrcl tinring of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in inter.nal
control lhat we identily dur.ing or:r audit.

w9 aiso provicle those chal'ged with gove lance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical leqr"til'er.r-reuts regalding independence, and to communicate with them alt relationships and other
r.nattel's rat may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Itrt tlt.tl the matters cornn.lullicirtecl with those chalged with govemance, we determine those matters ll.iat areof nlost signrficatlce in the aLrclit of tlre stanclalone financial statements of the curr.nt perrod and are
Lhe|e1ble the key audit lllatters. we descrjbe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or r.egulation
p|ecludes public disclosure about the matter or when; in extremely rare circumstances, we deter.mine that all.]alter slloi.lld llot be comllt trllicated in our report because the uduar." 

"orrr"q.rences 
of doilg so rvould

'easonably 
be expected to olrrweigh the public interest benefits ofsuch communlcation.

Iteport on Other l,egal and Ilegulatory Requirements

i. As reqr:ired by Seclion 143(3) ofthe Acl, based on our andit. we report that:

a We have sought aud obtained a1l the information and explaaations which to the best oi'
knowledge ar.rd belief wer-e necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b ln or:r opi.ior.r, p'oper books of account-as required by raw have bee'kept by the cor'pa'y so
fal as it appear.s fi-oil our examination of those books.

c. The Stardalone lJalance Sheet, the Statement of pr.orit and Loss (including other
compt'ehetlsive incone), tire Star-rdalone Statement of Changes of Equity and the Standalone
Cash Flows dealr \.\'ith by this Iteport are in agreement with the books of account.

d hr our opinion, the albresaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Stanclards
plescribed under. Section 133 ofthe Act.

e on the basis of tl.re written representations receiveci from the directors of the Company as on
March 31, 2024. tal<en on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is ciisqualiiied
as on March 31 , 2024 flom being appointed as a director in telms of Section 1 64(2) of the act.

(*lA$o
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l.t.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to stanclaione
fitlaucial statemellts of the Clornpany and the operating effectiveness of such controls, ref'er to
oul sepalate repo't in 'A*exure A', our repod expresses an unrnodifiecl opinion o'r the
adequacy ar.rd ope.ating effectiveness of the company's internal financial controls with
refetence to standalone financial statements.

with lespect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Reporl in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) ofthe Act, as amended:

Iu our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explar.rations give6 Io us,
the temuueratiotl paid by the Conpany to its directors during the year.is in accor.dan"ce with the
plovisions of section I 97 of the Act.

Witir lespect to tl.re other matters to be included in the Auditor's Reporl in accordance with Rule
I I o1'the companies (Audit and Auditors) Ru1es, 2014, as amendid, in our. opiniol and to the
best ofonr infbruratior.r and according to the expianation given to us:

(i) The cor.r.rpany did 
'ot 

have any pending litigations which may have an impact o' the
fil ancial position of the company in its standarone fi'anciar itatement.

(iD The ComparLy did not have any long-term contracts including derivative conrracrs
for which there ale any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) The Corrpany is not required to transfer uny u.ount to the Investor. Education and
Protection Fur.rd.

i. Based on our.examination which included test checks, the company has not used an accounttng,
software with a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility for maintaining rts books of
acco n l. "

2 As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,2016 ('the Order') issuecl by tl-re Ce'trai
Govet'umeirt ill terns o1'Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in 'Annexure B' a statement on the
mattels specified in Patagraphs I ancl 4 ofthe Order.

g.
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(l1efe|l'ed 1o in paragraph 1(l) r-inder' 'Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements, sectio, of our-
report to the members of M/s. Swati projects Limited of even date)

Itepoft on the Inteual Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-sectior-r 3 of
Section I 43 of the Companies Act, 2013 (,the Act,)

We have audited the intelnal financial controls with reference to standalone finalcial statements of
M/s. SWAI'I PROJBCI'S I-IMITBD (,fie .Company,).as of March 31, 2024 i4 con;uncriolr wiri.r or:r
audil o1'the standalone tlnancial statenents ofthe Company as at and for the year endecl on that clate.

Itt ottt' opit]ion' the Cornpany has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial coltlols with
lelerellcc to standalolle firlancial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively
as at 3l Mar-ch, 2024, based ot.t the internal financial controls with leference to standalone financial
statelllents cliteria established by the oor]]pany consiclering the essential componelts of ilter.nal control
slaled in the Guidance Note on ALrdit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by tire
Iustitute of Chadered AccormLauts of India (the,.Guidance Note',).

TJre Corrpany's InallagelllenL antl the Boald of Directors are responsible for establishing and mair]taining
interual financial controls based on the criteria established by the company consideiing the esseirtia]
conrponents of internal contfol stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities inclr-rde the desigp,
irlplenreutation atld nlaitltenat]ce of adequate internal financial controls tilat were operating effectively lbr.
clrsut-ing the oldelly ar.rcl eflicicnt cor.rdr-rct of its business, including adherence to the Company,s pojicies,
ll're saiegualding of its assels, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, tl]e accuracy ancl
courpleteness of the accoutlting recolds, anci the timely preparation of reliable financial infolmatio'. as
ieqLriled r-rndel the Companies r\ct, 2013.

A uditor's Rcsoonsibilitv

oLtt'tesponsibility is to express au opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls with ref'erence to
stalldalolle finar.rcial statenlerlts basecl on or-u' audit. We conducted our ar-rdit in accordance r.vith tl-re
GLridance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over'Financial Reporting (the .Guidance Note,)
issued b1' the lllstitule of Chal'tefecl Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribecl uncler
Section 143 ( 1 0) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent app.licable to an audit of int"r'al ilnancial
coulrols with reference to starldalotle financial statements. Those Standards and the Gr-ridance Note requile
that we corrply with ethical reqr:irements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

ii ., I ,l,jt.l, ;\rnril11!rfi_ (iati No Ii. (infhi [asl of Kaililsh, New l)cllr; , flOGS. V. V+::slf f
liorhirf l'irJr'lr(hiri lll,,.k-r.rrrti{'\'\j9.r2q.c|HRoad.Artraltur',cherndi-60009r,l!4: !r8s1B:ir,1
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abotlt whether adeqLlate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were
established and tlaintained and whetl.rer such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Oul ar"rdit itlvolves performit.tg procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
iinancial contlols with reference to standalone' financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
ar"rdit of intelnal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtair.ring an
r"rrrcierstandirlg of such ir.rternal financial controls, assessing the risk that a. mate al weakness exists, a1c1

testir.rg and evaluatir.rg the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed r.isk.

The pt'ocedttres selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
lnaterial misstatement ofthe standalone financial statemerts; whether due to fraud or,errol

We believe that tl-re audit evider.rce we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for.our.
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial conhols with reference to standalone financ.ial
staler.nents.

A Company's iutelnal financiai control with leference to standalone financial statemelt is a process
designqd to provide leasonable assLtrance legarding the reliability offinancial reporting and the prepar.atior-r

01'standaione financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted acconntir-rg
principles. A company's intet'nal control with reference to standalone financial statements include those
policies and pt'ocedut'es that (l) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accur.ately
ancl fairly reflect the transactions and dispositjons of the assets of the company; (2) pr.ovicle reasonable
aissrlrance that transactions ale recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial
statenletlts in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts ancl expenciitures
of the Cotnpany are being n.rade only in accordance with authorizations of the management and director.s of
the Company; and (3) plovide reasor-rable assurarce regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on
the standalone fi nancial statements.

Because of the inherent limitatior.rs of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
stcternerlts. irtcJLrding rhe possibility of collusion or improper management override of controis, nrarer.ial
rnisstatements due to error or fi'aud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the intelual financial contlols with reference to standalone financial stateme;ts to fllture periods are subject
to.tlie risk tl.rat the ir.rternal finar-rcial control with reference to standalone financial statements may becorne

(P*{u
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. inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or'

procedures mav deteriorate.

Oninion

In our opinion, to the best of our informatior ard according to the explanations given to us, the Cornpany

has. in all n.laterial respects, an adequate inteinal financial controls system with reference to standalone

financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements

were opelating e1}'ectively as at March 31,2024, based on the intemal control with reference to standalone

financial staten'lents criteria establishecl by the Company considering the essential components of internal

contlol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls with reference to standalonb

financial statements issued bv the Institute of Chartered Accountants oflndia.

Place: Koll(ata

Daler 29'r' May, 2024

FoTMMODI&ASSOCIA'IES
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(lief'eLred to in paragraph 2 Lrr.rder 'Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements, section of our
feport to the members of Mis. Swati projects Limited of even date)

with lefi:r'ence to the Anuexttt'e B refelreci to in the IndeBendent Auditors' Report to the me.',ber-s of tl.re('onrparry on standalone final.rcial statements for the year ended 3lstMarcl], 2024, werepod the fbllowing:

i) ln lespect of the Company's fixed assets:

a. The Company has rnair.rtained proper records
details and situation of fixed assets.

b As inlbrr,red, the lixed assets having negligible values are stated under retained earninqs.

c. 1-hc Corrpany cloes not own any irnmovable properlies.

ii) Tlte Company is in the business ofploviding non-banking financial services ancl cloes nor ha'e
ary pirysical i'vento.ies. Accordingry, reporting urder clause 3 (ii) of the order. is r.rot
applicable to the Con-rparly.

iii) Accolding to the iltl'ormation and explanations given to us, the Company has given ]oans to five
pat'ties, covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Compani"es Act, 2013. The
Outstanding balance of such I oan was 11,67 ,53,6541-.

iu) In or"rr opinion and according to the.information and explanations given to us, the compa'ry has
complied with the p'ovisions ofSection 1g5 and ig6 ofthe companies Act,2013, in respect ol
toans, lnvestnenls, guarantees and security.

The Cor.r.rpany has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the dir.ectives issued by
lhe lleserve Ilank o1'lnclia and the provisions Section 73 ro 76 or any other relevant provisioris
of the Act a'd the companies (Acceptance of Depcisit) Rures, 2015 with regar.d to the cleposris
accepted from tlre pubiic are not applicable.

v)

The rlaintenance of cost records has not been specified by the central Government under
Section 148(1) o1'the companies'Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the

showing full particulars, including quantitative

VI)

co'.rpary Th's, repo.ti'g under clause 3(vi) ofthe order is not appricable to the co
ll(l ll,lrJ.i..\|iritj, ri.(;aJi \(i l.j. Oilrlii Eiisr olf.iiilitsh, Nt'r;v D"li,j'.lf ,:,06ivn1].r\It 
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\ ii) Acco'dirg to rhe inro.rrratiot', and e"pranationiffi to us, in respecr oisr.orurory d*s

a The Company i.ras genelally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
It]come Tax and other rnaterial statutory dues applicable to it with the appropr.iate author.ities.

b There wele rlo nndisputed amounts payable in respect of Income Tax and other lraterial
statritory dues in artears as at March 31,2024 for a period of more thal six months iiom the
date they becan.re payable.

c. Accordi'g to the information and explanation given to us, Income Tax demand of Rs.
83.43'363/- for Asst Yeals 1984-85 to 1987-88 is being disputed by the compariy apd the
Appeals are pending before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeal).

riii) Acco|dirtg to tlrc ilrtbrlnalion and explanations given to us alld on the basjs ofour exanr.crrorr
of the recolds of tlre company. the company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unt'ecolded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under. the
Ltcome Tax Act, I 961 as income during the year.

lx) According to tl'ie inforr.r.ration and explanations given to us ard on the basis of our examrnation
of the tecords of tlre co'rpany, the company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or.
bolrowings or. in thc payments of interest thereon to any lender.

x) According to the infonlation and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examrnation
of the lecolds of tlre Company, the Compaay has not been declared a wilful defaulter bv anv
bank or financial institution or govtlmment or government authority.

xi) lu oul' opinion ancl according to the information and explanations given to us by the
ltlanagetrrent, the Contpany has not taken or applied or given to any terrn loans.

xii) Acco|dir.rg to the information and explanations given to us and on an overali examination of the
balauce sheet of the Company, we repod that no funds raised on short tefm basis have been
r:sed fol long ternt pllrposes by the Company.

xiii) Accordir.rg to the inlbfnation and explanation given to us and on an overall examination of tl.)e
standaloue fir.rancial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any
liI]ds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, as
defined in the Act The Company does not liold any investrnent in any associate orjoint venture
(as defined in the Act) during the year 2024.

jJ () ll,l..i l. \r)tr tIun. (;ali \.... l-1, Drlhi ll(l{16i. \4: 9125S|24J
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xiv) Accoldiirg to tire infbrmation and explanations given to us and procedures performed by r.rs, we

report that the Cor.npany l-ras not r-aised loans duling the year on the pledge of securities l.ield in
its subsidiaries (as defined rurder the Act).

x\, The Company has uot taken any loan either from Banks or financial institutions or flom the

govemment and has not issued any debentures.

xvi) Based r"rpon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the

nranagement, the Company has not raised monies by way of initial public offer or further public

offel including debt instruments and term loans. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3 (xvi) of
llre O|de| a|e not applicable to the Company and hence not commented npon.

xvii) According to the inlormation and expianations given to us and on the basis of our examination

o1'the lecords of the Cornpany, the Company has not issued preferential allotment ol pLivate

placement dulir.ig the year. Accordingly, clause 3 (xvii) is not applicable.

xviii) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and expianations given by the

management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or'

employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

xix) According to tlre information and explanations given to us, no reporl under sub-section (12) of
Seotion 143 ofthe Act has been fiied by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule

I 3 o1'Conpanies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 with the Central Government.

XX) Accolding to the informatior.r and explanations given to us, the managerial remunelation has

been paid or,plovided in accoldance witir the requisite mandate by the plovisions of Section

197 read with Schedule V of tlle Comnanies Act.2013.

xxi) In our Opinion, the Company is not aNidhi company. Therefore, the provision ofclause 3 (xxi)
o1'tl're Ordel ale not applicable to the Company.

xxii) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 alci
188 ofthe Companies Ac|2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial
Statements as lequiled by the applicable accounting standards.

xxiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
enteled into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accoldingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xxiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Conrpanl,

and hence not corrurented upon.

.' l.l \ r. .rt'..r;. (,ali \\ ' lr(ii,rlrl '. i loixii. \4: 9.125s11241
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xxv) 1hc Cor.npar1l' has not incurrecl cash losses in the cunent and ir.r tl.re ir.nr.r.recliately pr.ececli'g
financial yen1.

xxvi) There is no zruy lesignation as statutory Auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3 (xxvi)
of tl.re Or.der. is not applicable.

xxvii) Acco|cling to the infotrnation and explanations given to us and on the basis of tl,re financial
latios' ageiirg antl expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liLtbilities' othe| inlb.nratiorr ncconrpanying the standalone financial stater;e;ts, our l<:rowledge
ol the Board of Dileclot's aud tlanagentent plans and based on our examination of the e'ic]e.ce
sLPlloltillg the asstrtnptions, nothing has come to our attention, which cause us to believe that
any uratetial Llnceltajnty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Compa'y rs not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they lall due
withir.r a period o1'one year fron the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability ofthe Company. We further stale that our reporting is basecl
on tire facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guirantee ,or zrny
assularlce that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet clate,--- will get dischafged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xxviii) In our opinlotl atlcJ accotding to the information and explanations given to us, the provrsrons of
Scctio' 135 of thc Act .eacl with the Companies (corporate Sociai Responsibility policy) tlLrles,
1014. rhe Cor.por.rr.. SocirI Responsibiliry (CSR) is nol applicable Lo rlte Corrrpanr

PIace: l(oll(ata

Date: 29rr' May, 2024

For M MODI & ASSOCIA'I'jrIS
C I r ttlered A c co u rt tct tr ts

put.lner
(l\4embership No. 054366)

UDIN: 2qosv Adtfllc(ry T 4,S 3?S

FRN: .l191418

(M r( wroDD

'l](J:ii,,],]|.].\nr|i1l]U|;.(;aljNot.;<;",t,iur.t.,ffil..\lrIlr|,i||1.]|rsllf.||1|('.k.:.i]jlr1'\\r'].i.2I).C]']'I1lold.Aub{itur.t'llrcnnrrlr.'rjooqr",r"l



PARTICULARS
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Note
No.

t3

..
ASSETS

1. Financial .Assets

[a] Cash and cash equivalents 3 z,:r55.o5 !,760.46

(bJ Loans 4 L2,17,625.83 !1 ,67 ,536.54

{c) lnvestnrents s0,255.00 50,255.00

(dJ Other Financial Assets 6 46,678.1,5 40,887.18

2. Non-Financial Assets

7.512.63

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

r. Financial Liabilities

2. Non-Financial Liabilities

(aJ Current Tax Liabilities (NetJ 7 19,575.77 22,076.46

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities [NetJ I 13.27 13.27

{c} Other Non-Financial Liabilities 9 2 1L7 <a r,529.00

3. Equity

(aJ Equity Share Capital 10 10,10,000.00 10,10,000.00

[b] Other Equity T t 2,84,776.07 2,26,880.45

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

SWATI PROJECTSLIMITED

STANDATONE BALANCE SHEETAS ON 31ST MARCH,TOZ4
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In terms of our report of even date attached.

For M Modi & Associates

Chartered Accountants

FRN:319141E

For and on behalfof

For Swati Projects Limited

Y^'7
Gvrk-l'roaf

Managing Director

Name: Shreegopal Daga

DIN:00397379Partner

fMembership No. 054366J

uDrN:Z{ 0543 € e I3KAY I tag s ZS

Place: Kolkata

Datel.29dlMay,2024

Limited

For Swati Proiects Limited

,nl -
Director ryf-
Namer Rishi Kapoor

DIN:08422654

For Swati Proiects Limited

Cc>
Director

Name: Avinash Jain

DIN:O96292L4

For Swati Proiects Limited

^ ?"7 "1'Ka"" tgch
Company Secretary

Name: Kavl I ool

For Swati Projects Limited

Anurag Daga

IN:05239623





[XVI) Earning per equity sbare (for
conunuing operadons)

Basic Es.) ' o.s7 0.64

Dilut€d (Rs,) 0,57 o.64

IXVII) Earning per equity shar€ (for
dlscontinued operauons)

Basic (RsJ

Diluted (Bs.)

(XVIII) Earning per equity share (for
continuingand discondnued operadons)

Basic (Bs.) o.57 o.64

Dilured {Rs.) 0.57 0.64

See accompanying rotes to the ffnancial statements.

In tervrs of oar report ofeven date attached,

ForM Modl & Associates

Chartered Accountants

FRN:319141E

For and on behalf of

For Swati Proiects Limited

'=+*:-ktp
Managing Director ! \
Namer Shreegopal Daga

(M KModi)

Partrrer

(Membership Ne. 054366J

Limited

unw: 2r{05496 e$xtY zhrssg
Placel Kolkata

Datet 29dn YIay,2024
Limited

Director eW

For Swati Proiests _Limited

\ 9 .\
\\or4 1041

Gompany Secretary

Name: Ravi Todi

For $qati Plolests Limited
.. l.

>hr"r' {nn
Chief Financial OfEcer

Name: Shashi Kumar

Name: Rishi Kapoor

DIN: 08422654

For Sir'ati Proieets Urlited

Director

Name: Avinash jain
DIN:.096292L4
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SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, ZO24

(In Hundred)



Net Increase/{Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) L,t93.49 st7.93

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning ofthe year 7,760.46 1,242.53

Casb & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

Cash & Cash Equivalents include:

Cash-in-Hand 1.44 17.08

With Scheduled Banks in - Current Accounts 2,952.21 7,743.38

In terms of our report of even date attached.

ForMModi&Associates

Chartered Accountants

FRN:319141E

For and on behalf of
For Swati Proiects Limited 

A-=),.e"4M
Managing Director - 

\
Name: Shreegopal Daga

Limited

(Membership No. 054366)

uDrN: 2{0F1 3LL$x4l16g 39f
Place: Kolkata

Datel29taMay,2024
For Swati Proiects Limited

;'tlot I tv'l
Director VJ)""'--
Name: fushi Kapoor

DIN:08422654

For Swad Proiects Limited

r\.
Director St;Z
Name: Avinash Jain
DIN:09629214

For Swati Proieats Limited
ll

'YaL" (dA-'l

Company Secretary

Name: Ravi Todi

for Swati Proiects Limited

9'"+'b"''
'Chief Financial Officer

Name: Shashi Kumar

Anurag Daga



SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANCES tN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

A. Equify Share Capital

l. Current Reporting Period

2. Previous Reporting Period

F. Other Equity

t, Curr€nt Reporting Period

(In Hundred)

Balance at the
beginning ofthe

Changes in Equity
Share Capital due to
prior period en"ors

Restated balance at
th€ begirning of lhe
curent reporting
period

10,10,000.00 10,10,000.00

(In Hundred)

Balance at the Changes in Equity
Share Capital due to
prior period errors

Changes h equity
share capital during
the current year

Balance at tlle end

ofthe curreot
reporting period

10,10,000.00 10,10,000.00

(In Hundred)

Particulars Total Other
f,quity

Securities
Premium

Statutory
Reserve
(U/s. 45-
IC of RBI
Act, 1934*

Balance as ai April 0 1 , 2023 20,000.00 87,824.38 |,19,056.07 2,26,880.45

Changes in accounting policy
or prior period errors

Restated balance at the

beginning of the current
reporting period

20,000.00 E7,824.38 r , t9,056.07 226,880.4s

t--*\.
Total Comprehensive Income
for the cuflent year li '\

\i'.i),' r '.J
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Dividends

Transfer to(from) Retained

€amings
I 1,579.1 1 (1 1,579. r 1)

Any other Changes

Profit for the yeax (net oftaxes) 57,895.s6 57,895.56

Balance as at March 31, 2024 20,000.00 99,403.49 1,651372.52 2,84,776.41

2. Previous Reporting Period (In Hundred)

Projects Lim

s)'P
For Swati Projects Limited

Director Orr"r*, @l/'
Name: Avinash .Jain

DIN: 09629214

Name; Rishi Kapoor

DIN:044?2654

Total Other
EquityStatutory

Res€rve
(u .4s
IC ofRBI
Act, 1934*

Balance as at April0l,2022 20,000.00 74,987,69 6'1,709.34 1,62,697.03

Changes in accounting policy
or prior period errors

Restated balance at the
beginning of the curren!
reporting period

20,000.00 '74,9&7.69 67,709.34 |,62,697 .03

Total Comprehensive Income
for the current yeax

Dividends

Transfer to(from) Retained

eamings
12,836.69 (12,836.69)

Any other Changes

Profit for the year (net of ta,xes) 64,183.42 64,183.42

Balance as at March 31. 2023 20,000.00 E7,824.38 1,19,056.07 2,26,880.45

t 'J / For and on behalfof
( \" ,/

For Sw(ti8{Xcts Limited For Swari proiects Limited

--\d/. \ -4' '\ /\ .- v* e'-W
Dir\,(or Managing Director \
N@ri: Anurag Daga Name: Shreegopal Daga

D/N:45239623 DIN;00397379

For Swati Proiects Limited Fnr Sr,\'rti pr.|ie.rc I.;rnira.l
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SWATI PROJECTS LIMITED

STAI\DALOI\E NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

r.OR THE ?ERJOD ENDED 31ST MARCH. 2024

1. COMPANY INT'ORMATION

Swati Projepts Limited, ineorporated in India is a public limited eompary. The Company is a
Non-Banking Financial Company CNBFC') engaged in lnvestments in Shares & Securities
and Inter-Corporate & Personal Loan. The Company is not a systematically imporNant
Company as defined in paragraph 2(l) (xix) of the Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposits
Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007. The
Company has received a Certificate bearing no. 8.05,02353 from Reserve Bank of India
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The equity shares of the
Company me listed on the Calcutta Stock Exchange CCSE'), Metropolitan Stock Exchange
('MSEI) and BSE Limit€d CBSE') in India. The Company's registered office is at 1688,
Jammalal Bajaj Street, Kolkata-700007, West Bengal, krdia.

List of Subsidiaries with percentase holdinq

2. SUMMARY OF SIGI\IFICAI{T ACCOUNTING POLICIES.

Statement of compliance and basis for preoaration and presentation of financial
statements

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
lndian Accounting Standards as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015 as amended and notified under Section 133 ofthe Companies Act., 2013
(qthe Act'), in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia
and other relevant provisions ofthe Act. Any application
guidance/clarificationVdirections issued by RBI or other regulatols are implemented
as and when they are issued/applicable.

Subsidiaries Country of
Incorporation

7o of holding

31-03^2024 3t-03,2023

Radhashree Roadsters Pl't. Ltd. India 100 100

P--{b
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b. Functional and oresentation curency

These financial statements are pr€sented in Indian Rupees ('INR or Rs.') which is also

the Company's functional currency. All amounts are rounded-off to the nearest

hundred, unless otherwise indicated.

Revenue Recoenition

Revenue from Interest on loans by the company is recognized on accrual basis.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted

accounting principles, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect thc reported amounts ofassets and liabillties at the date ofthe financial
statem€nts and the results of operations at the end of reporting period. These estimates

are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and actions. The
actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates

is recognized prospectively.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is
adjusted for the effects oftransactions ofa non--cash nature and any defenals or
accruals ofpast or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular
revenue generating, financing and investing activities ofthe Company are segregated.

Cash flows in foreign cunencies are accounted at the actual rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates ofthe transactions.

Propertv, Plant & Equipment's

Fixed assets having negligible values are stated under retained earnings.

Deoreciation

As the assets were transfened to retained eamings, no depreciation was required to be

provided.

Revenue Recogrition

Income from investrnents & other sources are accounted on accrual basis.

$
ffiq
*\ \----/l*
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J.

Inveshnents

Investments are stated at cost. All investments are long-term investments. The value
of iome ofthem has been eroded due to Market conditions for which no orovision has

been made in the book of accormt.

Contingent Liabilities

There are no so-called contingent liabilities.

Foreign Cmency Transactions

Company has not made during the current financial year any foreign curency
transactions.

The Company has elected to exercise the option pemitted under Section I 15BAA of
the lncome Tax Act, 1961 Bs introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment)
Ordinance, 20i9. Accordingly, the Company has recognized provision for Income
Tax for the year ended 3l"t March,2024.

3. Cash & cash esuivalents:

SL
No.

Particulars As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023

Cash-in-hand 1.44 17.08

b. Balance with Schedule Banks rn
Cunent Account

2,952.21 1,743.38

TOTAL 2.953.65 t,760.46

5(,,Md



4. Loan:

Current Year 3 1.03,2024

sl.
No.

Particulars Amortized
cost

At Fair Value Subtotal Total

Thro
ugh
Other
Com
prehe
nsive
Inco
me

Throug
h
Proft
or Loss

Desig
nated
at fair
value
throu
gh
profit
or
Ioss

(1) (2) (3) (4) (51+3+4\ {6-1+5)
1. Loans -

Unsecured,
considered
goods:

a. Daga Co.
(Partnership
Firm)

10,46,742.03 r046,742.03

b. Vinal
Investnents
Limited

9,377.3r 9,377.31

c. Piyush
Secwities
P\,1. Ltd.

34,9r5.49 34,915.49

d. Radhashree
Apartments
h/t. Ltd.

86,865.01 86,865.01

Radhashree
Homes Pvt.
Ltd.

39,72s.99 39,72s.99

TOTAL 12.17.625.83 12.17.625.83



Previous Year 31.03,2023

st
No.

Particulars Amortized
eost

At Fair Value Subtotal Total

Throu
^Ltsrl
Other
Comp
rehen
sive
Incom

Through
Profit or
Loss

Desig
nated
at fatr
value
tlroug
h
pofit
or loss

(7) (8) (9) (10) (11=8+9+10) 02=7+11)
I. Loans -

Unsecured,
considered
goods:

a, Daga Co.

{Partnership
Firm)

9,84,589.41 9,84,589.41

b. Vinal
Investllrenls
Limited

7,335.77 7,335.77

Piyush
Securities
Pfi. Ltd.

34,912.97 34,912.97

d. Radhashree
Apartments
Pfi. Ltd.

1,04,036.75 1,04,036.75

e. Radhashree
Homes Plt.
Ltd.

36,661.64 36,66t.64

TOTAL IL,67,536.54 11.67.536.54



5. Investments r

Current Year 3 1.03.2024 At Fair Value

100 Equity Shares ofM/s.
Hindustan Motors Limited

ace Value Rs.10
100 Equity Shares of IWs.
Hindustan Motors Limited

ace Value Rs.10

1,000 Equity Shares of
IWs. Bihar Sponge lron
Limited (Face Value Rs.

52,500 Equity Shares of
lWs. Radhashree Roadsters
Pr-t. Ltd. - Subsidiary Co.

ace Value Rs. 10
4,47,500 Equity Sharcs

@ight Issue) of IM/s.
Radhashree Roadsters Pvt.
Ltd. - Subsidiarv Co.

ace Value Rs. l0

44,750.00 44,750.00



sl.
No

Previous Year
31.03.2023

Amortized
cost

At Fair Value Subtotal Others Total

Particulars Through
Other
Compreh
ensive
hcome

Throug
h Prolit
or Loss

Desigtra
ted at
fair
value
through
prolit
or loss

Equity Instruments:

a. Quoted:
100 Equity Shares of
I\rfls. Hindustan
Motors Limited
(Face Value Rs.10)

22.00 22.00

100 Equity Shares of
IWs. Hindustan
Motors Limited
(Face Value Rs.l0)

15.00 15.00

Unquoted:
I,000 Equity Shares
of M/s. Bihm Sponge
Iron Limited @ace
Value Rs. 10)

218.00 218.00

52,500 Equity Shares
of lWs. Radhashree
Roadsterc Pvt. Ltd. -
Subsidiary Co. (Face
Vaiue Rs. 10)

5,250.00 5,250.00

4,47,500Equity
Shares (Right Issue)
of lrtf/s. Radhashree
Roadsters Ptt; Ltd. -
Subsidiary Co. (Face
Value Rs. l0)

44,750.00 44,750.00

TOTAL 50255.00 s0255.00

p::.:1i'-i^
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Redemption of shares

Number of shares
outstanding as at the end
of financial year (March
3 I ) or period ended

1"01,00,000 10,10,000.00 1,01,00,000 10,10,000.00

(iv) The details of Shareholders holding more than 57o Shares:

(v) The Company has not issued Bonus Shares and Preferential Issues during the
period. The Company has a616ou*trt back shares during the period offive years
immediately preceding the reporting date.

(vi) Shar'eholding of Promoter'sr

Particulars As at 31-03-2024 As at 3l-03-2023
No. of

Shares held

o/" of
Iloldins

No. of
Shares held

"/o of
Holdine

Promoter's Holdins
Sudha Daea 9.40.200 9.3t% 9.40.200 9.31o/o

Vatsala Dasa 5.82.720 5.77% 5,82.720 5.77%

Non-Promoter's Holdine
Anurodh Infrastructwe Pvt. Ltd. 6.00.000 5.94Yo 6.00.000 5.94%
Bumour Power Private Limited 6.00.000 594% 6.00.000 5.94%
Wonderland Paper Suppliers Private
Limited

6,00,000 5.94%;o 6,00,000 5.94%

Radhashree Finance Limited 15.00,000 14.85% 15.00.000 14.85%

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year Y"Change
durins the vear

SL
No.

Promoter Nane No. of Shares o/o of total
shares

1 Shreegopal Daga 64.200 0.63
2. Anurag Daga 3.600 0.04
J. Sudha Dasa 9.40.200 9.31
4. Vatsala Daea 5.82.720 5.77
5. Shreeeopal Daea HUF 81.480 0.81
6. Vinal Investrnents

Limited
2,37,120 ?15

Ganpati Stocks Private
Limited

5,00,000 4.95

Total 24.09.320 23.86

J4
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12. Interest Income:

13. Other Income:

14. Emoloyees Benefite Exoenses:

SI.No, Particulars As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023
l. Profit & Loss AccounJ

Openine Balance 1.19"056.07 67.709.34
Add: Profit for the vear 57.895.s6 64.183.42
Less: Transfer to Statutory
Reserve

11,579.11 12,836.69

Closine Balance 1.65"372.52 1.19.056.07

2. Statutorv Reserve 99.403.49 87.824.38

Share Premium 20"000,00 20.000.00

TOTAL 234.776.0t 226,880.45

SL No. Particulars As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023
l. Interest on Loans t"12.867.94 1.06.736.97

TOTAL t.12367.94 1.06.736.97

SL No. Particulars As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023
l Interest on Income Tax Refund 447.50

TOTAL 447.30

Sl. No. Particulars As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023

MD & Kev-Manaserial
Personnel

Salary 11.685.44 I1.446.05
Bonus 120.00 120.00

TOTAL 11,805.44 11.566.05



15. Other Exnenses:

16. Payment to Auditors Oncludine Interim Audit Fees):

Sl. No. Particulars As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023
l. Audit Fees s90.00 295.00
2. Advertisement Exnenses 629.37 s67.00

Bank Charses 5.06 13.7r
Conveyance 1.00

5. Printine & Stationerv 164.93 1"336.69
6. Courier. Postase & Stamp 116.63 556.50
7. Professional Tax 25.00 25.00
8. Listing Fees s.280^50 1.209.50
9. Offrce Exoenses 128.10 r25.64
10. Filing Fess 92.00 219.00
ll. Legal & Professional Fees ) all )7 1,567.73
12. Late Fees 7.00 40.60
12 Proeessing Fees 11.800.00
14. Reeistrar Fees r42.78 142.78
15. Depository Charges 1,369.03 1.4t6.07
16. Interest Paid (Self Asst. Tax) 309.06 278.07
1'7 Annual Maintenance Charses 70.80 74.29
18. Membership & Subsoription 247.80 354.00
19. Income Tax Appeal Fees 10.00
20. Office Rent Paid 60.00 60.00
21. ROC Penaltv 1.000.00
22. Telephone & Mobile Expenses 58.34 41.46
z). Trade License 21.50 84.50

TOTAL 23,59L.17 9.418.54

Sl. No. Particulars As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023
1. Statutorv Audit Fees 590.00 250.00
2. Secretarial Audil Fees 150.00 100.00
3. Intemal Audit Fees 100.00 100.00



17. Related Party Disclosures:

A. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship where Control exists.

b) Radhashree Roadsters Private Lirnited: Subsidiary Company

B. The following transactions were carried out during the period with the related
parties in ordinary course ofbusiness.

Controlling Persons Subsidiarv Co. Other related Parties

10,56,119.34

Nil

Nit

Nil

97,969.29

1) Loan Given

2) Loan Accepted

3) Loan Repaid

4) Interest paid

5) Interest received

from: -

Daga Co.

Vinal Investrnents Ltd.

Sl. No. Name of Related Parties Description of Relationships

1 Shri Shreegopal Daga Managing Director (KMP), Promoter

Shri Shashi Kumar Key Managerial Personnel (CFO)

J, Shri Ravi Todi Key Managerial Persoonel (Company
Secretary)

Vinal Investments Limited
inwhich MD(KMP) hold
98.57% Shares

Company in which KMP / Relatives of KMP
can exercise significant influence

5 Shri Anurag Daga (Son of
Shri Shreegopal Daga &
Promoter)

Relatives of KMP and Director

6 Smt. Vatsala Daga

@aughter-inJaw of
Shreegopal Daga &
Promoter)

Relatives of KMP and Director



C. The following represents the transactions between the Companies during the
period ended 31"1 March. 2024.

The nature of transactions wilh KMP is mentioned beiow:

D. Non-Executive Director (Sitting tr'ees)

Smt. Vatsala Daga

Sri Anurag Daga

Sri Rishi Kapoor

Sri Avinash Jain

Sri Amit Lal

: Rs. NIL

: Its. NIL

: Rs.NIL

: Rs. NIL

: Rs.ML

18. Deferred Tax Liabilitigs as per AS -22 has. not been provided during the year.

19. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts and not provided for
Demands of Income Tax for Assessment Year 1984-85 to Assessment Year 1987-88,
as appeals against the assessment orders are pending Rs. 90,90,149l- before the
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals).

sl.
No.

Nature of
Transaction

Key Managerlal Personnel (KMP)

Sri Shreegopal Dag4
Managing Director

Sri Ravi Todi,
Company Secretary

Sri Shashi Kumar,
CFO

Salary Paid 2,400.00 6,000.00 3,285.44

2. Bonus Paid 60.00 60.00

TOTAL 2,460.00 6.000.00 3345.44

#tre)
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20. Schedule to the Balance sheet of a Non-Banking Financial Company as on
31.03.2024 required in terms of paragraph 13 of a Non-Banking tr'inancial (Non-
Dcposit Accepting or l{olding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank)
Directions. 2007.

(Rs. in hundred)

Particulars

Liabilities side:

(r) I-oans and advances availed by the NtsFCs

Inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not

Paid:

(a) Debentures: Secured

: Unsecured

(Other than falling within the

meaning of public deposits)

(blDefened Credits

(c) Term Loans

(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing

(e) Commercial Paper

(0 Public Deposits

(g) Other Loans (unsecured)

Amount

Out-

standing

NIL

NIL

Amount

overdue

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Assets side: Amount outstanding

Break-up ofloans and Advances including bills
receivables fother tharl those included in (4) below]:

NIL

12,17,625.83

(a) Secured

(b) Unsecured (Net of Provisions)

(3) Break up ofleased Assets and stock on hire and
hypothecation loans cormting towards ELIHP
activities

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry
debtors:

(a) Fioaneial lease

(b)Operating lease NIL

'i:lti-l''i"*
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(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under

, sundry debtors:

(a) Assets on hire

(b) Repossessed Assets

(iii) Hypothecation loans counting towards

ELIHP activities:

(a) Loans where assets have been

repossessed

(b) Loans other than (a) above

Break-uo of Investnents:

Cunent investments:

1. Quoted:

(i) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Govemment Securities

(v) Other (please specify)

2. Unquoted:

(i) Shares: (a) Equity

O) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of mutual fuads

(iv) Govemment Securities

(v) Others (please specifu)

Lons Term investment:

l. Quoted:

(i) Share: (a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

,f,R
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iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Govemment Securities

(v) Other (please speciff)

2. Unquoted:

(i) Shmes: (a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Investment In Pmtnership Firm

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

50,218.00

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Borrower group-wise classification of all leased

assets, stock-on-hire and loans and advances:

Amount net of provisions

1. Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries

(b) Companies in the same group

r0,46,742.03(c) Other related parties t0,46,742.03

2. Other than related parties 1,61,506.49 l,6 t,506.49

12,17,625.83 12,17,625.83

lnvestor group-wise classification ofall investments (current and long term) in shares

and securities (both quoted and unquoted)

Market Value /
Break up or fair
value or NAV

Book Vaiue (Net of
Provisions)

;^ .i)n !J1;'ii .<*< tl.RelatedParties ...'.'.,..,,.:::...



(a) Subsidiaries NIL NIL

(b) Companies in the same group NlL NIL

(c) Other related parties NIL NIL

2. Other than related padies 50,251.20 50,255.00

Total 50,251.20 50,255.00

(7) Other information

- - *lnvestments in those unquoted eompanies @alance sheet as at 31st March, 2024 has nst
been received) have been shown at their book values.

21. Details of held Benami Prooertv

The Company does not hold any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

22. Wilful Defaulter

The Company had never been decoded defaulter by any bank or financial lnstitution
or other lender or any ofthe Regulators.

23. Relationshin with Stuck off Comoanies

The Company has not any relationship with Stuck offCompanies.

(i)

Particulars Amount

Gross Non-Banking Assets NIL

(a) Related parties NIL

@) Other than related parties NIL

(ii) Net Non-Performins Assets NIL

(a) Related parties NIL

(b) Other than related parties NIL

(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction ofdebt ML



24. Resistration of charses or satisfaction with Reeistrar of Companies (ROCI

There is no any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the
statutory period.

25. Connpliance with number of layer of comnanies

. The Company has complied with number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of
section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,
2017, The Company have I (one) Subsidiary i.e., Radhasluee Roadsters Private
Limited.

26. Utilization of Share Premium

The eompany has not utilized Share Premium anouoting Rs. 20,00,000,00 during the
year.

27, Borrowings from Banks or Financial Institutions

There are no bortowings from Banks or Financiai Institutions during the year.

28. Corporate Social Responsibili8 (CSR)

The Company has not covered rmder section 135 ofthe Companies AcL The CSR is
not applicable to the Company.

29. Undisclosed Income

The company do not have any 
'nrecorded 

transaction in the books ofaccounts that
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessment
under the Income Tax Act. 1961.

30. Ratio

a. eapital to fusk Weighted Assets : I .05

b. Tier I CRAR= 1.05

c. Tier II CRAR:0

d. Liquidity Coverage Ratio - 0



31. Earnin{s ner Share AS - 20

No. of Equity Shares

Nominal value per Equity Share (Rs.)

Earnings after Taxes (in Rs.)

EPS (Rs.)

1,01,00,000

10

57,89,556

0.57

32. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped * arranged wherever necessary.

In terms of our report of even datc anached,

For M Modi & Associates

Chartered Accountants

FRN:319141E

For and onbehalfof

For Swati Proiects Limited

',-4-0.,-€-eAJ
vt 

\
Managing Director \
Name: Shreegopal Daga

DiN:00397379Partner

{Membership No. 054366J

uDrN: 21 06ry gg(!k ctY lct f I 3 Y

Place: Kolkata

Datet296May,2O24

Limited

For Swati Proiects Limited

Director fl.k\./ 4-
Name: Rishi Kapoor

DIN:08422654

For Swati Proiects

srez
Director

Name: Avinash jain

DIN:09629214

Limited

: Anurag Daga
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'f'he Members ol'M/s. Swati

Independent Auditors' Report

Projects Limited

llcport on tlre Audit of the Consolidated linancial Statements

0pinion

wc have ar"rdited the accornpanying consolidated financial statements of M/s. Swati projects Limited (,the
f-]ompany'), and its Stibsidialies (the Company and its subsidiaries together ,.f"r..,r t'o as the .,(]r.oup,,)
rvhich conrprise the Consolidatecl Balance Sheet as at Malch 3l, 20;4, the Colsoliclatecl Stateurcnt ofPx;lit and.Loss (including other Cotnpreh3lsive Income), Consolidatecl Statement ol Changes in l.iquity
anci cousoliciated statement of Cash Flows fol the year then endecl, ancl notes to the consolidated fi'a,cial
slaletnents' inclutling a stlllllttary of the significant accounting policies ancl othel explanatory i1lb.malion
(lrcleinal'tel lcfer.recl to as ..the consolidated financial statements,,).

ln otrl opi;rion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
afir|csaicl Statcment include the results ofthe following entities:

irl orrt'opitriotr anci to the best of out inlbnnation alcl according to tl.re, explanatiol.rs give, to us, the
albr-esaicl consolidated {inancial statelrents give the information ieqLrired bf the Coinpanies Act. 20i3("tlie Act") in the nanuet so t'equired ancl give a tlue and fair view in 

"o"i'ur*Jy with the ir.rciia..-'Accottnting Slanclar-cls pt'escribecl under section 133 of the Act read with the Cornpanies (lndian
Accouuting Standarcis) Rr-rlcs, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles geirerally
accepted jir lntlia. of the state of affairs of the Compaay as at March it, 2oz+l ihe profit *d ott,.,.
cornplehensive income, cha:rges in equitl' ancl its cash flows for the year endecl on that date.

Illsis Ibr Opinion

Nrrnte ol ErrLity

Raclhashree l{oaclsters Private Limited

t l rrLrr 1t'Poll. Wc are indepen.l(rll ol'lhe Conrpary iu accordance with rhe Code of Erhics jss.
lnsiitrtc o1'{--hari9l:,1_A.gg:l,rl*F q_r"qi" (rcAI) together with rhe eriricar requirern"nt, tt.,at

.ij.).'i tit j. .\,)rirlirrrj. (iati \o ]j.Ctrrhi [isr ofli,,ii,t-.[ f.f.ru UJr,i f r,,r,,ri il,.,.l:ilrui-
l\.rri:i,: i'.l,L.lriir,:!l ijlti.li,l trrr,t..\\9 t)t). c t.l.t t()trt. r\llrbBttur., Chcrnrii- rn)0{l9lj. j\1: i)Stjltjj:;J

\l/e cotldLtcteci oul audil ol' llie consoliciatecl financial statements in accorclance with the stanciarcls .nALrditing specilied uudet section 143(10) of the Act. Our respolsibilities lrncier. those SAs are fiir.ther.
ilesc'ibecl in tbe Audilor's Rc.tp.onsibititie,s .[or the Audit of the Consolictctted Fintncial s[atements sect]an

Relationship with the IJolding
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" '|r\-Lr lur4uurilr slalenrcnls uncer Lne provrslons ot the Act and the llules
i':t:e,::o:::1.1 :. 11':"f*.f ll.cl orr oth.er ethical responsibilities in accordance wittr ttrese r.equr.emenrsancr rhe ICAI's code or Erh;.. w;;;;;;;;.#ffiii:'11"*:':ffifr:T il"li':i'J?fi:i:i]nX:applopriate to p|ovide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated finaricial ,tut.,o"ntr.

I of tar posil ions

'l'h e hey audit rnrtter

l(cy Audit Matte rs

I{ey audit rratters are those rrlattel.s that, in our professional judgement, were of most signiiicance in ouraLrdit of the consolidated finar-rcial statements of the cunent period. These matters were addressed ir.r thecorltext of ottr audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinionthct'eon, and we do not pr.ovicle a separate opinion on these mauers.

Descriplion of Key Audit Nlatter

llvaluilllon

' re Gloup opel.atiolts it.l are subject to
authorities on a
normal course of
transfer pricing

India
per-iodic challenges by local tax
range of tax lratters arising in tl.]e
business including direct tax ar.rd
miittefs.

Estiniating the ir.rcome tax expel.rses also r.equires
the Glonp to deten.nine the pLobability oi tax
alrthot'ities ziccepting a pal.ticular tax treatment for
potential tax exposures. These involve significant
.juclgement b1, the Cloup to cleter-mine the possible
olrlcor]1e of the tax litigations and potential tax
r'\l)usllleS. curiseqUcntly Jrlrvirrg arr impaCt On
related accounting and disclosr:res in the
cousolidated fi nancial statellents.

lJr.J lr4,'r.r, \rnri{i,uri.Cati \0.. t.;. Carhi firsr olK.ilaJ, Nwnll,il t t0G5.r4, +t.!illl.(,oliiri'|i1'h\lrr.l_8l1rok-t.iiJut-Wt).t2.1.(.'t.l. (ond.A lbrltur.Caennnl,.<,dtlOgn,itj: 96$4t,rj?1.1

How the matter was addressed in our autlit
Our audit procedures on taxation i,-,.t.,a" lfr"
following:

o Obtained an under-standing of key tax
litigations and potential tax exposures.

r Evaluated the design, implementation ancl
operating effectiveness of tire ir.rternal
controls relating to the Group assessmer]t of
the possible outcome of tax litigations,
potential tax exposures and relatecl
disclosures in the consolidated financiai
statements.

. The ar,rdit team, along with our inter.nal tax
expens:

4 Read a:rd anaLyzed select key
conespondences and consuitatior.is carried
out by the Gror"rp including with externai tax
expefis for key tax litigations and potential
tax exposures.

4 Inquired with the Group and exter.nal tax
experts to evaluate key assumptions ancL
grounds of appeal considered by the Group
in estimaiing the current tax balances.a Evaluated the status of the r.ecent tax
assessments/inquiries, resuhs of previor:s tax
assessments, legal precedence/judicial
rulings and changes in tax environurent. This
is perfouled to assess and challenge the
Group estimate of tire possible outcor.ne of
k"y tax iitigations zu,rci potential tax



,1. 'J. lli. \rfririirs. i,2,i. {.1, i}l{cri.r"'r.rr{,. sffrr''1. srl! l,x\.. l(rllrli-?00ii91.:vlr 98,t1076:15/9li3l532l0li, ctrnil:

4 Assessed and tested the adequacy and
accuracy of the presentation and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.

..
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()thcr In forrn u lion

The Gloup MarLagement and Board of Directors are responsible for the other inforuration. The other
information comprises the infolmation included in the Group annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's reporl thereon. Tire annual report is expected to be
rurade avaiiable to us aftel the date ofthis auditors' report.

Our opinion on the cor,solidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
expless any fbmr of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit ofthe consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read tl:re other
jnfolrration identified above when it becomes available. and, in doing so, consider whether tire other
infolmation is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge,obtained
jn the audit ol otherwise appears to be matei'ially misstated.

When we lead the annual fepol't, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
lequiled to cor.nmunicate the natter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as

applicable under tl're lelevant lai.vs and regulations.

Managements and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Gloup n.lanagement and Roard of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Colr.rpanies Act, 2013 ('tlie Act') with respect to the prepaxation of these consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income,
changes in eqLrity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the
Act. This lesponsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
plovisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for prever.rting ald detecting
llar:ds and other ir:r'egularities; selection and application of appropriate accourting policies; n.raking

.judgments and estimates tl'rat al'e reasonable and prudent; and design, impldmentation and maintenance of
adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating effectively fol ensuring the accr"rlacy and
cor.npleteness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
ftaud or error'.

ln preparing the consolidated financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Gloup ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going conceln and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
Lo licluiclate tl.re Gloup or to cease operations, or have no realistic altemative but to do so.

'fhe iJolrd of l)ircctols is resl'orrsible for overseeing the Group financial reporting process.

lJ.() il,i,ll \rnrirPUri. (ialiNo. l.j.Onrhi Easloftailesh,NewDclhi'.1lotlits.\4: 1il2:Sll24l
k.clrrlr l'trLr,.lr,:[r.i. l]il).k-1. ljlr1'\\'9. 129. Cfll ltitid- Ar]rb[$ur. (:henn.li r]00098. N1r q8S"13jill1

ffii
[\""{tInJ, ,

Ar.d'



M MODI & ASSOCX&€WW
cit-tAIl?'liR{iD .4ccG(l N'rAN'f s

lL'\l:1l].{]lil.|'llj1,-|1'.||t]j]\q'

Auditors' Responsibilities lbr the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Oul objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a

whole ale free tior.r.r matelial nisstatement, whether due to fraud or e1Tor, and to issue an auditor''s |eport
ti.rat lncludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an

audit condncted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatenent when it exists.

N4isstatenents can arise fronr fraud or error and are considered material il individually or in the aggregate,

they could reasonably be expeoted to inflnence the economic decision of users taken on the basis of these

corsoiitlated fi nancial stalelrents.

As par't of an audit in accoldance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain plofessional

skepticism throughout the anclit. We also:

+ Identily and assess the lishs of matelial misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to lraud ot error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence tirat is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Tl.re risk
of Lrot detecting a uraterial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting fi'om
errol, as fraud ntay iltvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

ovelride of intelnal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the alrdit in order to design audit
plocedures that ale appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, ue ale

also lesponsible for- cxltlessing our opinion on whether the Group has adequate intelr.ral financial
contfols system iri place and the operating effectiveness ofsnch controls.

4 Evaluate the applopliater.ress of accounting policies used and the leasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conchrde on the appropriateness of management's mee of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based or.r tl.re audit evidence obtained, whether a material unceftainty exist related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group ability to continue as a going conceln. If
we conclude that a material unceftainty exists, we have required to draw attention in our auditor's
repoft to tl.re related ciiscloslres in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosules are

inadeqr-rate, to modily or"n opinion. Our conclusions axe based on the audit evidence obtaired up to
tl.re date of our auditor''s report. I{owever, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease

to contlnue as a golr.rg concerrl

Evaluate the ovetall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statet.nents,

including the disclosnres, and whether the consolidated financial statements

r-nder'lying uansactions and events in a manner that aghieves fair presentation.

li () : I 14, | \,  rrriltJ ri. (hli No. - li, C.rrhi liast olKaihsh, Ncw Delhi - I10065. \4: 9.i?-5Sl l24l
i.u,:11,r L'i*relrsIc,:1. IJlLrck-i.lrl "\V9. l29.CILlltotJ.Arrllallur,Chsnnli'60t1093,N'11983-1,35511-1
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Materiality is the magnitude of nrisstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or.in aggfcgate, urakes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably klowledgeable user of the
consolidated linancial staternents may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiali"ty and qrialitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect ofany idenlified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the plamrecl scope
and timing of the audit ar,d significant audit findings, including any iignificant cleficiencies in internal
conlrol that we identify during our audit.

Y9 olo provide those chalged with governance with a statement that we have complied with reievant
ethical |eqLrirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other.tl?I,:r: ,,h", may reasonably be tl-rought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
sr letl 13 rds.

[tottl t]re ll.latters colllmur.ricated with those cl.ralged with governance, we d.etermine those matters that al.eof nlost sigtlificance iu the audit of the consolidated finincial statements of the curr.ent peliod and are
the|efo|e the key ar"rdit nlatlefs. We clescribe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
plecludes public disclosr-rre trbout the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we detemine that a
matter should ltot be comtluuicated in out. report because the udurrr" aorr."quences of doing so woulcl
.easonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits ofsuch communication.

Ilcport on Other Legal ancl Regulatory Requirements

l As r:eq,i'ed by Sectio' r43(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we reDoft that:

.j We have soltgl.rt ar.rd obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes ofour audit.

k ln oltr opinion, ploper books of acco,unt as required by law have been kept by the Gr.6ry so far.
as it appears fi.om onr examination ofthose books.

l. The consolidated Barance sheet, the statement of profit and Loss (incrudi'g other
comprehensive iircome), the consolidated statement of changes or iquitf a'cr trre
Coirsolidated Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books o{ accolint.

m' In our opinion, the afbresaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 ofthe Act.

i' :r' r \'. r. i,r. .ri.,l, \, i.:.(.lrJri l:eit(,fl\irihNh.Neul)ill)i.. {ift;).\,,J.]]iIl,2.
l\N.hrlr I' l.ir(lr.! . lll.ck- i. i,la1,\19. t2q. C l'l-l ll0,rit. An)l)dtur, Chcruri_ 6d0098, Nl: irsii-itjjl | 1
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Ol the basis of the rvritten representations received from th" directo
3l'2024, talceu ou lecord by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualifiecl as on
Marclr 3 l, 2024 fron being appointed as a director in terms of Section i 64t2) of tire act.

0.

p.

With lespect to the acjequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consohdatecl
li.rancial statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controis, Lefer Lo our
separate report in 'A'urexure A'. our report exprgsses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Group internal financial controls with reference to
cor.rsolidated fi r.rancial statements.

Witl.r respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Reporl in accordance with the
lequirements of sectiotr 197(16) ofthe Act, as amended:

In oLil opinion and to the best of oru'information and according to the explanatiols.giyen ro us,
the remulleration paid by the Group to its directors during the year is i1 accordanie rvith the
plovisions ofsection I97 of the Act.

With respect to the other natters to be included in the Auditor's Report i1 accordance rvith ltuie
l1 of the compar-ries (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amenclid, in our opiniol anci to ti,re
best ofout information and according to the explanation given to us:

(iv) Tl.re Group did not have any pending litigations which may have an impact on the
financial position ofthe Company in its standalone financial statement.

(v) Tl're Croup did not have any long-term confacts including cierivative contracts for
wl.rich there are any material_foreseeable losses.

The G'or"rp is not requiled to transfer any amount to the Investor Educatior.r a'cl
Proteiction Fund.

q.

(vi)

Place: I(oll(a{a

Date: 29t1' May,2024

For M MODI & ASSOCIA'I'ES
Chutered Accou Il(nts

FRN: 319 t4I E

(M K MODr)

(MembeLship No. 054366)
UDIN: 2 r,t 0Eq3 6b6 K4YTH TSsl

:J1, | ,lr'i i \ rr1rlruri Oali \o l.l. Cttrhi Eisl0f(ailash, Nerv Dcll)i ,ll0(165. \,1:9.125r ),il
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(RelcrLed to in paragraph l(1) under' 'Reporl on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements, section of our:
re port to thc r'nerrbers o1' M/s. Su,ati projects Limited of even date.)

l{cpo't on the Internal Fi.ancial co'trols ove' Financial Reporting under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of
Sectron I 4i of the Companies Act, 2013 (,the Act')

We have aLrdited the ittternal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements oF
M/s' SWA'l'l PRO.IBCI'S LIMITED ('the Company') as of Mar.ch 3I,2024 in conjunction wirh our.
atrdit o1'the consolidated financial statements ofthe Company as at ancl for the year ended on that clate.

hl ottt opitliotl, tile Glor-rp has, in all matelial respects, adequate internal financial controls with rei'erence to
consolidated flt]ancial statements and such internal financial eontrols were operating effectively as at 31
March. 2024, based on tl.re i;rtelnal financial controls with reference to consolidateJ financial stzlternents
clite|ia established by the Grttup cousidering the essential components of internal control stated io t].re
Ciridatrce Note on Audit ol' Iulct nttI Firlartcial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institpte of
Clrnr'tet'ed Accouutants of lndia (the ..Guidance Note").

lihe Gloup rllarlagelnent and the Boald of Directors are responsible for estabiishing and mair.rtaining
1l)iefllal llnancial controls based on the criteria established by the Group consider.ing tl-re essential
con]llorlents of intelrlai control stated in the Gr:idance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
illlplemeirtatiotl aucl mainienance of acleqlnte internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
enstt|ing tlle oldelly and efficier.it conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company,s poiicies,
tlte saf'egua|ding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy a'd
completeuess of the accoltr.lling records, ancl the timely preparation of reliable financial informatiol. as
lequirecl under the Companies Act,2013.

Auditor's Rcsponsibili{v

Our- r:esponsibility is 10 exl)fess an opinion or-r the Group internal fir.rancial coi.rtr.ols r.r,ith r.efer.e'ce t.
corrsoliclaled finarlcial statcrltents based on oul audit. We conducted our audit in accordance rvith the
Gtriclance Note otl Aridit o1'Intelnal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the .Guida'ce Note,)
issLred by the Institute of Char1eIed Accountants of India and the Standards on Ar-rditing presclibecl r-rncler.
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial
controls with ref'erence to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
reqtllre that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

lii) ii't'li \,rir;rl, fr (ilrii \io t.i. (iitfhi hst ofKaihsh, Ne$ Delh;, OOOi. f,t, y,+::sit:+t
l\,,.i :iti I',rLrl !liJ!l tilL:;k-i- i,tar-\\r9. i2'1. (.t ll R'ad. Anrballuf. Chonrni ,60(109g. Nt: VSS"lll-iilt.i

ASs
':,,,&.,



M MODI & ILSSCICTATPS
CI{Ait'I'HRT: D,4(-'CO I J N ANTS

assttlance abont whethel adequate intetnal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements were estabiisl.red and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all naterial
fespecrs.

Our audit involves perfblr.nir.rg procedrues to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the ir.rternal
llnancial cor.rtlols witl.r reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
ar:dit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial, statements included obtaining
att urtderstanding of sucli intemal financial cq4trols, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
r(-stjllg fll)d evalrnting the desigrr and operating effectiveness ol internal control based on the assessed risl(.

The procedules selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
ntate|ial misstateureut of the consolidated financial statements. whether due to fraud or error.

We beiieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
aLrdit ol:inion on the Groqr intemal finalcial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Menning of Internal lrinzrncinl Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A Glor:p inlernal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statement is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the prepar.ation of
conso[dated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
plir.rciples. A Group intelnal control with reference to consolidated financial statements incli-rde those
policies and procedures that (1) perlain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and t-arlly lellect tl.re tr-ansactions and dispositions of the assets of the group; (2) provide leasonable
assulance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated finarrcial
statelnents in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of tire Gror"rp are being rrlade only in accoldance -with authorizations of the management and dilectols of
the Glor"rp; and (3) provide teasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorizecl
acquisition, use, ol disposilion of the Group assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated
fi nrrrc ial sla lcll rel lts.

Inherent Limitntions of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated fiirancial
staten'Ier.tts, including the possibility of collusion or improper management oveuide of iontrols, naterial
lrisstatenlents due to el'ror or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the iirtelnal financial eontrols with leference to consolidated financial statements to futnre periods are

sLrb.ject to the risk that the interr.ral finar.rcial control with reference to consolidated financial statetrents nray
becorne inadequate because ol'changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
plocedures lrray deteriorate.

l].rj.: I l4,lj, Anrrilpuri. cali No. - lj, 6Arhi fi$t ofKailash, New Dcthi - I I0(16j. l\4r 942531 t24l
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Oninion

In our opinion, to the best of our information ancl according to the explanations given to us, the Gror"lp has.
in all ntatelial respects, an adeqr:ate intern-al financial controls system #ith reference to consolidated
lir.rancial statelt.lents aud such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
were opel'ating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control with reference to
consolidated fir.rancial statements criteria established by the Gronp considering the essential components of
itrternal contt'ol stated in the Guidance Note' on Audit:oT Intemal Financial Controls with reference to
standalone financial statements issued by the Institute of Charter'ed Accountants of India.

Place: Kolkata

Date: 29rr, May, 2024

FoTMMODI&ASSOCIATES
Ch rIercdAccoLtttlttrts
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See accompanying notes to tle financial statement$.

In terms of our report of even date aftached,

ForMModi&Associates

Chartered Accountants

FRN:319141E

For and on behalfof

For Swati Proiects Limited

.,0++-.-<:-*_41
"\

Managing Director

Name: Shreegopal Daga

Partner

fMembership No. 054366J

uuN:?40f13ee gVqY rH +.'t
Placer Kolkata

Date:29th May,2024

Limited

For Swati Proiects Limited

Director e&
Name: Rishi Kapoor

DIN:08422654

For Swati Projects Limited
\

N9%"
Director

Name: Avinash Jain

DIN:09629214

For Swati Proiects Limited

3,o^ 7n-"
CompanySecretary

Name: Ravi Todi

For Swati Proiects Limited

$i-r" b-"-
Chief Financial Officer

Name: Shashi Kumar

DIN:003

Anurag Daga

IN:05239623





EVI) Earning per equity share (for continulng
operations)

Basic (Rs.)' 0.55 0.85

Diluted (Rs.) 0.s5 0.85

(XVll) Earning per equity share 60r discontinued
operations)

Basic (RsJ

Diluted (R&)

(XVlIl) Earning per equlty share (for condnuing
and discontinued operadons)

Basic (RsJ 0.s5 o.85

Diluted {RsJ 0.55 0.85

See accompanylng trotes to tle ffnancial statements.

In ter9',,s of out report of even date attached.

ForMModi&Associates

Chartered Accountants

FRN:31914lE

For and on behalf of
For Swati Proiects Limited

@

LiInited

Parbrer

(Membership No. 054366)

sDrNtVqor\E:6BX4 f lil 7sJ'I
Place: Kolkata,

Datez29eMayt2O24
tror Swati Proiei:ts Limited

ltl
ll J,t"-'7urecror v)_;

Namer Rishi Kapoor

DIN: 08422654

For Swati Proiects Llmited

awz-
Director

Name: Avinash Jain
DlNt096292!4

For Swati Projects Llmlted
\

'Kai'loat
Company Secrebry

Name: Ravi Todi

For Swati Proiects Limited

Srrv P,'"'
Chief Financial Officer

Name: Shashi Kumar

Managing Director

Name: Shreegopal Daga

Anutag Daga
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swATI PROIECTS LUUTTED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FORTHE VEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

(In Hundred)

PARTICULARS

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERA"ING ACTIWTTES

Net Profit Before Tax & Extraordinarv ltems 73,8L6.79 1,06,534.55

Adiustments:

Interest Received tl,12,867.94) t1-,07 ,784.47)

Interest Paid 309.06 278.A7

Depreciation 8,433.04 4,870.58

Operating Profit before Worldng Capital Changes (30,309,0s) 4,494.73

Adjustments for:

Changes in other payables t1,,o79.09 (4,049.38)

Changes in Reserve & Surplus [4,873.5sJ

Changes in Trade Receivable (368.021 (386.541

Cash Generated from Operations {19,s97.98) (4,4n.74)
Less: Tax Paid/Adjustments 22,016.46 18,040.78

B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Long Term Loan Given {49,339.29} {s7,47s.34)
Other Financial Assets 

.._. aa_;\_. {7,873.0sJ tL7,4r7.35)
Investments in Shares & Gold {7,412.6r)
properry, planr and equipmenr il;fl:.f (12,015.43) t6,e81.70)
Interest Received \i.\W 7,r2,867.94 1,07 ,184.47

29$97.47

C) CASH FLOW FROM FTNANCING ACTIVITIBS

Interest Paid (30e.061 {278.07')

&78,s71
i.*,r



Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) \746.67 6,767,AA

Cash & Cash Equivalents atthe beginning ofthe year 1,0,326.44 3,558.56

Cash & Cash Eouivalents include:

Cash-in-Hand 7,018.39 6,O19.27

With Scheduled Bank in - Current Accounts 5,O24.72 4,307.23

Total xz,a43,tl

In terms of our report of even date attached,

ForM Modi & Associates

Chartered Accountants

FRN:31914lE

For and on beha$ af
For Swati Proiects Limited

..rn4=-,-Y.^-ree,+.59L_e(vtt
Managing Director \
Name: Shreegopal Daga

Limited

Parurer

fMembership No. 054366)

UDIN: /-/-lgJQ 366Bkfi\11-1 1Ey1
Place: Kolkata

Date: 29tt May, 2024
For Swatl Prolects Llmlted

Director AP=

for Swati Proiects Limited For Swati Proiects Limited

Name: Rishi Kapoor

DIN: 08422654

For Swad Proiects Limited

SP
Director

Name: Avinash Jain
DIN:09629214

Q*'7oa) SL^t, 6,--^_
ChiefFinancial OfEcerCompany Secretary

Name: Ravi Todi Name: Shashi Kumar

Anurag Daga

DIN:05239623





Dividends

Transfer to(fiom) Retained

earnings

I 1,579.11 (11,579.11)

Any other Changes

Profit for the year (net of taxes) 55,187.26 55,187.26

Bal.nce as at Msrch 31.2024 20,000.00 99,403.49 1J5,313.80 2,54,717,29

2. Pr€vious Reporting Period (ln Hundred)

For Swati Proiects Limited For Swati Proiects Limited

oi."oo. slP Orr"n, QpI '

Name: Avinash Jain

DIN 09629214

Name: Rishi Kapoor

DIN: 08422654

Statulory
Reserve
(U/s. 4$
IC of RBI
Actr 1934*

Balance as at April01.2022 20,000.00 14,311.14 t9,235.94 1,13547.08

Changes in accounting policy
or prior period errors

Restated balance at the
beginning of the current
reporting period

20,000.00 74,311.14 lq t1{ 01 1,13,547.08

Totai Comprehensive Income
for the current year

Dividends

Transfer to(from) Retained

earnings
12,836.69 (12,836,69)

Any olh€r Changes-Issue of
Shares in Preferential Basis &
Bonus Share Issue

o/b.)) (676.5s)

Profit for the year (net oftaxes) 85,982.97 85,982.97

Balance as at March 31.2023 20,000.00 87,824.3E 9r,705.65 1,99,s30.03

For and on behalfof

For soyutt d{/ct t i*it"a

>\\
'rt ,

f: Anurag Daga

: 05239623

For Swati Projects Limited
,.-' D '. -r n.ffi+4

Managing Director \
Name: Shreegopal Daga

DIN: 00397379



M/S. SWATI PROIECTS LTMTTED
KOLKATA

FORTI{R PERIOD ENDED 3 MARCIr,2024

COMPA}TY INFORMATION
Swati Projects Limited, incorporated in India is a public limited company. The
Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company ('NBFC') engaged in Investrnents in
Shares & Securities and lnter-Corporate & Personal Loan. The Company is not a
systematically important Company as defined in paragraph 2(1) (xix) of the Non-
Banking Financial (Non-Deposits Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential
Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007. Ttre Company has received a Ce(ificate
bearing no. 8.05.02353 from Reserve Bank of lndia under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The equity shares of the Company are listed on the
Calcutra Stock Exchange ('CSE') and Metropolitan Stock Exchange ('MSED in India.
The Company's registered office is at 1688, Jamunalal Bajaj Street, Kolkata-700007,
West Bengal, India.

Llst of Subsidiaries wlth oercentase holdins

Subsidiaries Country of
IncorDoration

% of holding

3r-03-2024 31-03:2023
Radhasbree
Roadsters Pvt. Ltd.

India 100 100

2. SI'MMARY OF SIGNIFICA}{T ACCOUNTING POLICIES.

a. Statement of compliance and basis for preoaration and presentation of
Consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accormting Standards as per the Companies
(Indian Aocoundng Standards) Rules 2015 as amended and notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act.,2013 (1he Act'), in confonnity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India and other relevant provisious
ofthe Act, Any application guidance/clarifications/directions issued by RBI or
other regulators are implemented as and when they are issued/applicable.

b. Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR
or Rs.') which is also the Company's functional cunency. Al1 amounts are
rounded-off to the nearest otherwise indicated.

/*Y x',1,,-'.'"i-?
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Revenue Recognition

Refer the policy on revenue recog ition for discussion on judgements and
estlElalgs o!! revenu€,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements, in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles, requires management to make
estimates and assrunptions that affect the reported arnounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations at
the end of reporting period. These estimates are based upol management's
best knowledge of current events and actions. The actual iesults corrld diffet
from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized
prospectively.

Cash Flow Statement

Consolidated Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby
profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions ofa non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The
cash flows from regular revenue genenting, financing and investing activities
of the Company are segregated. Cash flows in foreign currencies are
accounted at the actual rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

Property. Plant & Equipments

The respective Management reviews the usefirl life of property, plant and
equipment al the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in
change in depreciation expenses in future periods.

Deoreciation

Depreciation provides as per Companies Act 20 I 3

Revenue Recosnition

Income from investments & other sources are accounted on accrual basis.



1. Investments

Invesfrnents are stated at cost. Al1 invesfinents are long-term investments. The
value of some ofthem has been eroded due to Market conditions for which no
provision hls been made in the book of aocouot,

Contineent Liabilities

There are no so-called contingent liabilities.

Foreiqn Currencv Transactions

The Group has not made during the current financial year any foreign clurency
transactions.

The Holding Company has elected to exercise the option permitted under
Section 115BAA ofthe Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation
Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has
recognized provision for Income Tax for the year ended 3l't March,2024.

j.

3. Cash & cash equivalents:

sI
No.

Particulars As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023

a, Cash-in-hand 7.018.39 6.0t9.21

b. Balance with Schedule Banks m
Current Accotmt

5,024.72 4,307.23

TOTAL 12,043.11 10326.44



4.@

Current Year 3 1.03.2024

st.
No.

Particulars Amortized
cost

At Fair Value Subtotal Total

Throu
oh

Other
Comp
rehen
sive
lncom

Throug
h Profit
or Loss

Desig
nated
at fat
value
throug
h
profit
or loss

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5=2+3+4) (6:1+5)
l. Loans

Unsecured,
considered
goods:

a. Daga Co.
(Partnership
Firm)

1046,742.43 10,46,742.03

b. Vinal
Investrnents
Limited

9,377.31 9,377.31

Piyush
Securities
Pvt. Ltd.

34,915.49 ?4 01 {40

d. Radhashree
Aparfiients
PvL Ltd.

86,865.01 86,865.01

Radhashree
Homes Plt.
Ltd.

39,725.99 39,725.99

f. Capital
Advances
TOTAL 12,17,625.83 r2.r7.625.83

/ipt"tib
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Previous Year 31.03.2023

sl.
No.

Particirlars Amortized
cost

At Fair Value Subtotal TotaI

Throu
6u
Other
Cornp
rehen
sive
Incom

Through
Profit or
Loss

Desig
nated
at fair
value
throug
h
profit
or loss

(7) (8) (e) (10) (11=8+9+10) (121+11\
1. Loans

Unsecured,
considered
goods:

a. Daga Co.
(Partnership
Firm)

9,84,589.41 9,84,s89.41

b. Vinal
lnvestments
Limited

1 7a\ 11 7,335.77

Piyush
Securities
P\,1. Ltd.

34,91,2.97 34,9t2.97

d. Radhashree
Aparhents
P\4. Ltd.

1,04,036.75 1,04,036.75

Radhashree
Homes Pvt.
Ltd.

36,661.64 36,661.64

Capital
Advances

750.00 750.00

TOTAL 11.6828654 11,68t86.s4

t"fr'S
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5. Investments:

SI

N
o,

Current Year
31,03.2024

Amortized
cost

At Fair Value Subtotal Others Total

Particulars Throu
Ch
Other
Comp
rehen
sive
lnao
me

Throug
h Profit
or Loss

Desig
nated
at fair
value
throu
gh

Brofit
or
loss

1. Equitv Instrunents:

a- Ouoted: Fullv oaid Up
100 Equity Shares of
M/s. Hindustan Motors
Limited (Face Value
Rs.10)

22.00 22.00

100 Equib/ Shares of
lv{/s. Hindustan Motors
Limited (Face Value
Rs.10)

15.00 15.00

-Unquoted: Fully paid
UD

1,000 Equity Shares of
lWs. Bihar Sponge Iron
Limited (Face Value Rs.
10)

218.00 218.00

, Investments in Gold 1^412.61 1,412.61

TOTAL t.667.6r 1'667.61



st

N
o.

Previous Year
31.03.2023

Amortized
cost

At f,'air Value Subtotal Others Total

Particulars Tbrou
Ch
Other
Comp
rehens
ive
Incom
e

Through
Profrt ot
Loss

Dvsig
nated
at fair
value
thrcug
h
profit
or loss

I. Equifv Instruments:

a. Ouoted: X'ully peid up
100 Equity Shares of
lvlls. Hindustan Motors
Limited (Face Value
Rs.10)

22.00 22.00

100 Equity Shares of
M/s. Hindustan Motors
Limited (Face Value
Rs.l0)

15.00 15.00

Unquoted: Fully paid
ut)
1,000 Equity Shares of
lvVs. Bihar Sponge lron
Limited (Face Value Rs.
-10)

218.00 218.00

, Investments in Gold r.412.61 1.4t2.61

TOTAL t,667.6r 1.667.61

6. Trade Receivables:

6r:
\i.t"*jt

sr.
No.

Particulars As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023

1. Undisputed Trade Receivable-
Considered soods

a. Less than Six Monlhs 754.56 386.s4

Total 754.56 386.54





11, Deferred Tax Liabilities:

12. Other Non-Financial Liabilities:

13. (i) Equitv Share Capital:

r'' ,!';,.''ir-:)!l

Slr
No.

Particulans As at3l-03-2024 As at 3l-03-2023

a- Defered Tax Liabilities 13.27 13.27
TOTAL 13.27 13.27

,"' ,1,{)

P. D. Randar & Co.

toq474

Particulars As at 31-03-2023

55,00,000 Equity Shares,of Rs. 10/-
each
50,00,000 Equity Shares ofRs. 10/-
each

5,00,000.00

ISSUED. SUBSCRIBED & PAID

33,75,000 Equity Shares ofRs. l0/- 3,37,500.00

16,87,500 Bonus Equity Shares of 1,68,750.00

30,37,500 Bonus Equity Shares of

20,00,000 (Preferential Issue)
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each,



(ii) Terms / Riehts attached with Equity Shares:
. The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a pm value of Rs. lOL
per share. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share.

(iii) Reconciliation of Equity Shares Ossued. Subscribed & Paid-up):

(iv) The details of Shareholders holdins more than 5olo Shares:

(v) The Company was issued 16,87,500 Bonus Shares in preceding previous financial
year 2019-2020 and 30,37,500 Bonus Shares issued and 20,00,000 Preferential Issues
inFY 2021-2022. The Company has not bought back shares during the period offive

Particulars As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023

(Units in
Nos.)

(Amount in
Rs.)

(Units in
Nos.)

(Amount in
Rs.)

Number of shares
outstanding as at the
begirming of the financial
vear (April 01)

1,01,00,000 10,10,00,000 1,01,00,000 10,10,00,000

Add: Increase in number
of shares durine the vear
Less: Reduction in
number of shares during
the vear

- Redemption of
shares

Number of shares
outsknding as at the end
of financial year (March
3 1) or period ended

1,01,00,000 10,10,00,000 1,01,00,000 10,10,00,000

Particulars As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023
No. of
Shares held

o/o of
Iloldins

No. of
Shares held

oA of
Holdine

Promoter's lloldiug
Sudha Direa 9,40,200 9.31% 9.40.200 9.31%
Vatsala Daga 5"82.720 5.77Yo 5.82.720 5.77%
Non-Promoter's Holding
Anurodh Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. 6.00.000 5.94% 6,00,000 5.94%
Bumpur Power Private Limited 6,00.000 5.94o/o 6.00.000 5.94o/o

Wonderland Paper Suppliers Private
Limited

6,00,000 5.94Yo 6,00,000 5.94%

Radhasbree Finance Limited 15,00,000 14.85% i5.00.000 14.85Yo

years immediately preceding the reporting date.







15. Repair and Maintenance 451.00 77.29
16. General Exoenses 574.19 722.25
t7, lnsurance Premium Inc GST 818.98 3s6.34
18. Late Fees on GST 2.00
19. Motor Car Expenses 4779.17 6,904.00
24. Trade License 43.00 106.00
2t. Sales Promotion 74.48
22. Resistrar Fees 142.78 142.78
23. Depository Charses 1,369.03 t.416.07
11 Annual Maintenance Charees 70.80 74.29
25. Membership & Subscription 247.80 354.00
26. Income Tax Appeal Fees 10.00
27. Maintenance Charges 14.18
28. Travelline Exoenses tt5.77 212.68
29. Conveyance Expenses 2,106.40 215.50
30. Round Off 0.04
31. Tra{Iic Penaltv 544.00 140.00
52. Roc Penal8 1.000.00
JJ. Staff Welfare Expenses 3.r3
34. Late Fees 7.00 40.60
35. Telephone & Mobile Expenses 58.34 41.46
36. Intemet ExDenses 379.86

License Fees 18.50
38. Motor Vehicle Tax 2.136.40
39. AMC Charges for New Motor

Bike
403.08

40. Trade Mark Reeistration 90.00
TOTAL 37.659.64 20.963.73

20. Palment to Auditors (Including Interin Audit Fees):

Sl. No. , Particulars As at 31-03-2024 As at 31-03-2023
Statutory Audit Fees 640.00 300.00

J Secretarial Audit Fees 150.00 100.00
5. Intemal Audit Fees 100.00 100.00



Sl. No. Name of Related Parties Description of Relationships
1 Shri Shreeeopal Dasa Manqging Director (KMP), Promoter
2. Shri Shashi Kumar Key Managerial Personnel (CFO)
J. Shri Ravi Todi Key Managerial Personnel (Company

Egcretary)
4 Vinal Investments Limited

in which MD(KMP) hoid
98.57% Shares

Company in which KMP / Relatives of KMP
can exetcise sisnificant influence

5 Shd Anurag Daga (Son of
Shd Shreegopal Daga,
Promoter & Director)

Relatives of KMP

6 Smt. Vatsala Daga
@aughter-in-law of
Shreegopal Dag4 Promoter
& Director)

Relatives of KMP

21. Related Partv Disclosures:

A: a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship where Control exists.

b) Radhashree Roadsters Private Limited Subsidiary Company

B. The following transactions were carried out during
parties in ordinary course ofbusiness.

the period with the related

Other related Parties

10.56,119.34
8,000.00

Nil
Nil

97,969.29

ControllinqPersons Subsidia{vCo.

1) Loan Given
2)LoanAccepted ,

Loan Repaid
3) Interest paid
4) Interest received -

from:-
1) Daga Co.
2) Vinal lnvestments Ltd.

,, '.'' 
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C. The following represents the transactions between the Companies during
the period ended 31"t March,2024.

The nature of transactions with KMP is mentioned below:

D. Non-Executive Director (Sitting Fees)

Rs. NIL

Rs. NIL

Rs. NIL

Rs. NIL
RS. NIL

1. Smt. Vatsala Daga

2. Sri Anurag Daga

3. Sri Avinash Jain

4. Sri Rishi Kapoor
5. Sri Amit Lal

22. Defened Tax Liabilities as per AS -22 has not been provided during the year.

23. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts and not provided for
Demands of Income Tax for Assessment Year 1984-85 to Assessment Year 1987-88,
as appeals against the assessment orders are pending Rs. 83,43,363/- before the
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals).

sl.
No

Nature of
Transaction

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
(Rs. In hundred)

Sri
Shreegopal
Dugq
Managing
Director

Sri Ravi
Todi,
Company
Secretary

Sri Shashi
Kumar,
CFO

1 Remuneration
Paid

2,460.00 6,000.00 3,285.44

2. Bonus Paid 60.00 60.00
TOTAL 2,460.00 6.000.00 3345.44
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24. Schedule to the Balance sheet of a Non-Banking Financial Company as on
31.43.2024 required in terms of paragraph 13 of a Non-Banking Financial (Non-
Deposit Accepting or llolding) Companies Prudential Norms (Resene Bank)
Directions. 2007.
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Loans and advances availed bv the NBFCs
Inclusive of interest accrued tiereon but not
Paid:
(a) Debentures : Secwed

: Unsecured
(other than falling within the
meaning of public deposits)

(b) Deferred Credits
(c) Term Loans
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing
(e) Commercial Paper
(f) Public Deposits
(g) Other Loans (unsecured)

Amount I Amount
Out- I overdue

NrL 
INrL 
IMLI

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL.
NIL

Break-up ofloans and Advances including bills
receivables fother than those included in (4)
belowl:
(a) Secured

Unsecured fNet of Provisions

NIL
12,17,625.83

Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and
hypothecation loans counting towards ELIHP
activities
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry
debtors:
(a) Financial lease

@) Operating lease

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under
sundry debtors:

(a) Assets on hire
@) Repossessed Assets

(iii) Hypothecation loans colrnting towards
ELIHP activities:
(a) Loans where assets have been

repossessed' (b) Loans other than (a) above

Break-uo of lnvestments:
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1. Ouoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity
. (b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Govemment Securities
(v) 0ther (please specifr)

2. Unquoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual firnds
(iv) Govemment Securities
(v) Others (please speci$)

Long Term investment:
1. Ouoted:
(i) Share: (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Other (please specifu)
2. Unquoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Govemment Securities
(v) Investment In Parnrership Firm

Borrower group-wise classification of all leased
stock-on-hire and loans and advances:

1. Related Parties

(b) Companies in the same group 9,377.31 9,377.31

2. 0ther than related parties 1,61,506.49

Total 12,17,625.83
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(6)
Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in
shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted)

Category Market Value /
Break up or fair
value or NAV

Book Value (Net of
Provisions)

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries NIL NIL
(b) Companies in the same sroup NIL NIL
(c) Other related parties NIL NIL

2. Other than related pafties 251.20 255.00
Total 25r.20 255.00

(r)
Particulars Amount
Gross Non-Bankins Assets NIL
(a) Related parties NIL
(b) Other than related parties NIL

(ii) Net Non-Performi ng Assets NIL
(a) Related parties NIL
(b) Other than related parties NIL

(ii1 Assets acquired in satisfaction ofdebt NIL

(7) Other information

*Investments in those unquoted companies @alance sheet as at 31$ March, 2024 has not
been received) have been shown at their book values.

25. Details of Benami Pronerty held

The Company does not hold any benaai property under the Benami Transactions

@rohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

26. Willful Defaulter

The Company had never been decoded defaulter by any bank or financial Institution
or othEr lender or any of the Regulators.

27. Relationship with Stuck off Companies

The Company has not any relationship with Stuck off Companies.

28. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

There is no any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the
statutory period.
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29. Compliance with number of layer of companies

The Company has complied with number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of
section 2 of the Act read witll Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,
?Q17. Ths CompanJ have 1 (onp) Subsidiary r,e., Radhashr--ee Roadsters Privale
Limited.

30. Utilization of Share Premium

The Company has not utilized Share Premium dwing the year.

31. Borrowings from Banks or Financial Institutions

There are no borrowings from Banks or Financial lnstitutions during the year.

32. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Company has not covered under section 135 of the Companies Act. The CSR is
not applicable to the Company.

33. Undisclosed Incorne

The company do not have any unrecorded transaction in the books of accounts that
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessment
under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

34. Ratio

a. Capital to Risk Weighted Assets = 1,03
b. Tier I CRAR = 1.03
c. TieTIICRAR=0
d. Liquidity Coverage Ratio = 0

35. Earnini per Share AS - 20

No. ofEquity Shares 1,01,00,000
Nominal value per Equity Share (Rs.) 10
Eamings after Taxes (in Rs.) 55,11,383
EPS (Rs.) 0.55

36. . Figures for the previous year have been regrouped - an'anged wherever necessary.



In terms of our rcport of even date attuched
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Charteredbccountants
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(M\tModi)
Partn€r
(Membership No . 0543 66)

Place: Kolkata
D$r:29hMay,2O24

For and on behalf of
For Swati Projects Limited

For Swati Projects Limited
f ll. ^/v?---

Independbnt Director
Name: Rishi Kapoor
DIN:08422654

'For Swati Projects Limited

slP
Independent Director
Name: Avinash Jain
Dlill:09629214

Name: Shreegopal Daga
DIN:00397379


